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American River Bankshares will provide its security holders and 3%00 Zinfandel Drive, Suite 450
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Report on Form 10-K, including the financial statements and investor relations@amb.cam
schedules thereto, as filed with the Securities and Exchange www.amib.com
Commission. To request a copy by mail, please contact American
River Bankshares. To view a pdf version online, please go to our
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Grow Business Banking

* Focus on core deposits

* Aggressive account acquisition
¢ Niches that differentiate

» Emphasize relationship banking

Expense Management Credit
» Efficiency & effectiveness Quality
* Control overheard

¢ OQutwork competition

Manage Capital

¢ Prudent capital management to enhance
shareholder value

e Share buybacks
» (Cash & stock dividends

Focus on Credit Quality

+ Quality credit culture
» Common sense real estate lending
= Diversified loan portfolio
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Laurie Todd-Dunlap of
North Coast Bank with
4th grade students at
Brook Hill Elementary

School in Santa Rosa
for Teach Children to
Save Day.

Expense
Management




FOCUS ON THE COMMUNITY

American River Bankshares’ community programs
continue to make the biggest impact possible in
the communities we serve, Qur programs include
the Employee Volunteer, Community Giving and
the AMRB Foundation, all of which strive to support
organizations that create opportunity, enhance self-
esteern and provide physical and emotional well-
being for the most vuinerable wormen and children.

Our Employee Volunteer Program allows all employees
from the date of hire 40 hours of volunteer time a
year without taking time off. We also offer matching
grants that recognize the time commitment employees
have made to an organization. In 2007, employees
donated 2,800 hours of volunteer time, which is the
eguivalent of 21 hours per employee.

The American River Bankshares Foundation was
established in July 2004 to give back meaningfully
to local non-profit organizations based in Amador,
Placer, Sacramento or Sonoma Counties. A large
portion of the Foundation’s funding is a result of the
Employee Match Program, which matches dollar-for-
dollar employee contributions. In 2007, employees
donated almost $12,000 to the Foundation, which
resulted in six grants totally $90,0000 to local non-
profit organizations.
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the #1 fundraising team
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
AND CEO

Dear Fellow Shareholder,

[rn 2008, American River Bankshares is celebrating its 25th Anniversary, which presents an opportune occasion ta
reflect on where we've been as a Company and more importantly, where we are headed in the future.

We have come a long way as an organization from where we started across from Oaks Hardware in the Fair
Qaks Village, but the most important aspects of our Company remain the same. American River Bankshares is
still led by a management team with a breadth of experience committed to providing financial solutions 1o local
business owners in Northern California. We still concentrate on shareholder value and are proud of our long-
term return to investors.

Since the day we first opened our doors in August 1983, aur focus has remained singular — provide business
banking expertise to the community, offer the best financial products and all with unparalleled service from
engaged and caring employees. Twenty-five years of unwavering focus has given us the opportunity to work at
perfecting our style of business banking without being sidetracked by the latest trend.

Our singular focus guided by an experienced management team will continue to serve us well as we look towards
the future. While other companies find themselves distracted by the current pressures facing the financial industry
and are forced to concentrate internally, American River Bankshares is presented with a great opportunity to gain
market share and acquire new clients.

There will be many challenges and a lot of hard work ahead in the coming year, but American River Bankshares
is positioned to fill the need in the markets we serve for business banking solutions.

Thank you for your investment in American River Bankshares and for the confidence you have placed in our
Company.

Here's to another twenty-five great years!

Sincerely,
Jim Wilmarth of Bank

of Amador with
4 ”Z—— 5th grade students at

i i Jackson El t
Charles D. Fite David T, Taber ackson Elementary

' ) School for Teach
Chairman of the Board President & CEO Children to Save Day.
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American River Bank

ORTH
A
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HEHCR FOC
& division of American River Bank

WBank of
ﬂmainmf

a division of American River Bank

American River Bank*
Bradshaw Plaza
Capitol Mall

Fair Oaks Village
Point West

Roseville

0o000

Bank of Amador**
@ Buckhorn
€ lone

@ Jackson

North Coast Bank**
€ Healdsburg

{ santaRosa

@ windsor

Key Facts

NASDAQ-GS Symbol
Market Capitalization
Founded

Headquarters

Number of Offices:
Number of Employees
Average Volume
Shares Outstanding
Inside Ownership
Institutional QOwnership

X

* American River Bankshares Headquarters
This focation also serves as a convenience branch for
Armerican River Bank

Darker area on map indicates our service area.

*Member FDIC / Egual Housing Lender
**Bank of Amador and North Coast Bank are
divisions of American River Bank

AMRB

$96 million

1983

Rancho Cordova, CA

12 The Boys & Girls

132 Clup of Healdsburg
received $15,000

4,046 shares per day from the AMRB

5,540,002 Foundation to

10.60% support the SMART

14.18% Girls Program.
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Loan Mix

" Dther $38,112,000

__Construction & Land Dev $66,022,000
" Invastor CRE $87.567,000

" Bus Property Loans $104,207,000

" Commercial $105,467,000

7 Totalloans $401,375,000

Total Return Performance
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Index 12/31/02  12/31/03 12/31/04
American River Bankshares 100.00 131.07 154.17
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 150.01 162.89
SNL Bank NASDAQ Index 100.60 129.08 147.94

Source: SNL Financial

Diluted EPS

2007 $146 [ ]
2006  $1.46 [ ]
2005 $1.45 T
004 $1.07 [ ]
2003 $0.90 [
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Depaosit Mix

I Savings $35,639,000

[ |nterest checking $43,577,000

(__Time deposits $116,366,000

[ Money market $127,397,000

[ Nonintérest-bearing deposits $132,666,000
[ Total deposits $455,645,000

® American River Bankshares
®» NASDAQ Composite
A SNL Bank NASDAQ Index

12/31/05  12/31/06  12/31/07
162.69 191.01 148.29
165.13 180.85 198.60
143.43 161.02 12642

Fred Barnum of
Barnum & Celillc and
his foursome play in the
Bill Young Memorial

Golf Classic, which has /=
raised almost $400,000
since 1988,




96 consecutive profitable quarters

Five-year shareholder return of 48.29%

Stock splits in 1999 and 2003

5% stock dividends from 1997-2002 and 2004-2006

Cash dividends since 1992; quarterly since 1Q 2004

406,350 shares repurchased totaling $9.2 million in 2007

Doliars in thousands

Staterment of Operations 2007
Net interest income 3 26,402
Provision for loan and lease loss 450
Noninterest income 2,599
Noninterest expense 14,833
Net income 8,478
Balance Sheet 2007
Totzl assets $ 573,685
Net lgans and leases 394,975
Depuosits 455,645
Shareholder equity 59,973
Per Share Data 2007
Basic earnings $ 1.47
Diluted earnings 1.46
Book value 1072
Cash dividends paid per share 0.58
Operating Ratios 2007
Return on average assets 1.47%
Return on average equity 14.01%
Return on average tangible equity 19.78%
Efficiency {fully taxable equivalent) 49.49%
Net interest margin 510%
Total risk based capital to risk weighted assets 10.70%
Asset Quality Ratios 2007
Allowance for loan and lease losses tc loans 1.47%
Nongerforming loans and leases to total loans and leases 1.86%
Net charge-offs to average loans and leases 0.11%

2006

§ 27.066
320

2,443
14,388
9,062

2006

$ 604,003
382,993
493,875
62,371

2006

$ 148
1.46
11.02
0.55

2006

1.50%
14.48%
2033%
47.11%

5.03%
11.59%

2006
1.51%
0.02%
0.03%

Percent Change
(2.5%)
40.6%
5.4%

3.1%
(6.4%)
Percent Change
{5.0%)

3.1%
{7.7%)
{3.8%)

Percent Change
(1.3%)

(2.7%)
5.5%
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American River Bankshares
Board of Directors

Charles D. Fite
Chairman of the Board
President, Fite Development Co.

Roger J. Taylor, DDS
Vice-Chairman of the Board
Executive Director

Impax Health Prime

Retired Dentist

Stephen H. Waks, Esq.
Secretary to the Board
Attorney-at-Law and Owner
Waks Law Corporation

Amador S. Bustos
Chairman & CEQ
Bustos Media, LLC

Dorene C. Dominquez
President
Vanir Group of Companies

Robert J. Fox, CPA
Pariner
Gallina LLP

William A. Robotham, CPA
Executive Pariner
Pisenti & Brinker LLP

David T. Taber
President & CEOQ
American River Bankshares

Michael A. Ziegler

President & CEQ

Pride Industries

American River Bankshares
Management Team

David T. Taber
President & CEQ

Mitchell A. Derenzo
EVP & Chief Financial Officer

Douglas E. Tow
EVP & Chief Credit Officer

Kevin B. Bender

EVP & Chief Information Officer
Community Bank
Management Team
David T. Taber

CEQ, American River Bank

Robert E. Barrett
SVP, Rea! Estate Division
American River Bank

Raymond F. Byrne
President, North Coast Bank

Wayne T. Garibaldi
Regional President, Bank of Amador

Donald D. Sager
SVP Business Banking
American River Bank

Laurie M. Todd-Dunlap
SVP, Loan Administrator
North Coast Bank

American River Bank
Board of Directors

Charies D. Fite
Chairman of the Board

Roger J. Taylor, DD5S
Vice Chairman

Robert J. Fox, CPA

William A. Robotham, CPA
David T. Taber

Stephen H. Waks, Esq

Philip A. Wright
Owner
Prudential California Realty

Michael A. Ziegler
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North Coast Bank Regional
Community Bank Board

Raymond F. Byrne

Leo J. Becnel, O.D.
Optometrist & Managing Partner
windsor Medical Center

Pam Chanter
Vice President
wantreo Insurance Brokers

Daniel Grow
Bank Consuitant
Grow Associates, LLC

Robert Hillmann
Movie director, producer and cameraman

Herb Liberman

Economic Development Cocrdinator
Healdsburg Chamber of Commerce &
Visitors Bureau

Dennis Murphy
william A. Robotham, CPA

Stephen Schwitalla
CEQ
Soroma County Vintners Co-op

Herbert C. Steiner
Pharmacist & Owner
Cloverdale Pharmacy

Philip A. Wright

Transfer Agent
Computershare Trust Company
350 Indiana Street, Suite 800
Golden, CO 80401
1-800-942-5509
www.computershare.com

Annual Meeting

The 2008 annual meeting of American
River Bankshares will be held at 5:00 p.m.
on May 22, 2008 at:

American River Bank

1545 River Park Dr., Suite 107
Saccamento, CA 95815
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Selected Financial Data

FINANCIAL SUMMARY—The following table presents certain consolidated financial information concerning the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries. This information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidaced
Financial Statements, the notes therero, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis included in this report. All per
share data has been retroactively restated to reflecr stock dividends and stock splits. In December 2004, the Company
completed a merger with Bank of Amador. The merger transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting and accordingly the results of their operations are included in the table below.

As of and for the Years Ended December 31, (In thousands, except per share amounts and ratios)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement Of Operations Data:
Net interest income $ 26,402 $ 27,086 26462 $ 19418 $ 16,866
Provision for loan and lease losses 450 320 322 895 946
Other income 2,599 2,443 2,329 2,395 2,253
Other expenses 14,833 14,388 13,493 11,713 10,372
income before income taxes 13,718 14,801 14,976 9,205 7.801
Income taxes 5,240 5,739 5,792 3,378 3,080
Net income 3 8,478 b 9,062 % 9,184 5 5,827 b 4,741
Earnings per share-basic $ 147 $ 1.49 3 1,48 $ 1.12 3 0.98
Earnings per share—diluted 1.46 1.46 1.45 1.07 0.90
Cash dividends per share 0.58 0.55 0.49 0.38 0.24
Bock value per share 10.73 10.50 10.15 9,59 7.19
Tangible book value per share 7.60 7.50 7.24 6.61 7.18
Balance Sheet Data:
Balance sheet totals-end of period:
Assets $ 573,685 $ 604,003 $ 612,763 $ 586,666 $ 397,393
Loans and leases, net 394,975 382,993 365,571 352,467 262,464
Deposits 455,645 493,875 500,706 475,387 322,507
Shareholders’ equity 59,973 62,371 62,746 58,990 35,457
Average balance sheet amounts:
Assets § 575225 § 603,040 §{ 596,670 $ 439,012 $ 363,175
Loans and leases 390,488 381,465 360,319 277.647 248,342
Earning assets 524,365 544,794 537,031 400,265 333,800
Deposits 479,344 488,026 494,905 357,420 279,883
Shareholders” equity 60,5933 62,570 60,641 39,163 33,461
Selected Ratios:
For the year:
Return on average equity 14.01% 14.48% 15.14% 14.88% 14.17%
Return on average assets 1.47% 1.50% 1.54% 1.33% 1.31%
Efficiency ratio™ 49.45% 47.11% 45.16% 53.12% 53.73%
Net interest margin* 5.10% S.03% 4.98% 4.90% 5.10%
Net charge-offs to average loans & leases 0.11% 0.03% 0.04% 0.08% 0.08%
At December 31:
Average equity to average assets 10.52% 10.38% 10.16% 8.92% 9.21%
Leverage capital ratic 7.72% 7.81% 7.66% 8.35% 8.96%
Allowance for loan and leases
losses to total loans and leases 1.47% 1.51% 1.53% 1.54% 1.48%
* fully taxable equivalent

2007 Annual Report American River Bankshares




Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is American River Bankshares management’s discussion and analysis of the significant changes in income and
expense accounts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed or incorporated by reference in this Annual Repore including, but not limited to, matters
deseribed herein are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and subject to the safe-harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigarion Reform Act of 1995, Such forward-looking statements may conrain
words related to future projections including, but not limited to, words such as “believe,” “expece,” “anticipate,”
“intend,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,” and variations of those words and similar words thar are subject
to risks, uncerrainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected.
Facrors thar could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) variances
in the actual versus projected growth in assets; (2) return on assets; (3) loan and lease losses; (4) expenses; (5) changes
in the interest rate environment including interest rates charged on loans, earned on securities investments and paid
on deposits; {6} comperition effects; (7) fee and other noninterest income earned; {8) general economic conditions
nationally, regtonally, and in the operating market areas of the Company and its subsidiaries; (9) changes in the
regulatory environment; {10) changes in business conditions and inflation; (11) changes in securities markets; (12)
data processing problems; {13) a decline in real estate values in the Company’s operating market areas; (1 4) the effects
of terrorism, the threat of rerrorism or the impacrt of the currenc military conflicts in Afghanistan and Iraq and the
conduct of the war an terrorism by the United States and its allies, as well as other factors. The factors set forth in this
report and other cautionary statements and information set forth in this report should be carefully considered and
understood as being applicable ro all related forward-looking statements contained in this report, when evaluating
the business prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Forward-looking statements are nor guarantees of performance. By their nature, they involve risks, uncerrainties
and assumptions. The future results and shareholder values may differ significantly from those expressed in these
forward-looking statements. You are cautioned nort 1o put undue reliance on any forward-tooking statement. Any
such statement speaks only as of the dare of this report. and in the case of any documents that may be incorporated
by reference, as of the date of those documents. We do not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions
to any forward-looking statements, to report any new information, future event or other circumstances after the dare
of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, exceprt as required by law. However, your attention
is directed to any further disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K.

Critical Accounting Policies

General

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Unired States of America ("GAAP"). The financial information contained within our starements is, to a significant
extent, financial informarion thar is based on measures of the financial effects of transactions and events that have
already occurred. We use historical loss data, peer group experience and the economic environment as factors, among
others, in determining the inherent loss thar may be present in our loan and lease portfolio. Actual lusses could differ
significantly from the historical factors thar we use. Other estimates that we use are related to the expected useful lives

2007 Annual Report American River Bankshares
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American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

12

of our depreciable assets. In addition, GAAP itself may change from one previously acceptable method to another
method. Although the economics of our transactions would be the same, the timing of events that would impact our
transactions could change.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allewance for loan and lease losses is an estimate of the credit loss risk in our loan and lease portfolio. The
allowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (1) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™)
No. 5 “Accounting for Contingencies,” which requires that losses be accrued when it is probable that 2 loss has
occurred ar the balance sheet date and such loss can be reasonably estimated; and (2) SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” which requires that losses be accrued on impaired loans based on the differences
between the value of collateral, present value of future cash flows or values that are observable in the secondary market
and the loan balance.

The allowance for loan and lease losses is determined based upon estimates that can and do change when the acrual
risk, loss events, or changes in other factors, occur. The analysis of the allowance uses an historical loss view as an
indicator of future losses and as a result could differ from the loss incurred in the future. If the allowance for loan and
lease losses falls below that deemed adequate (by reason of loan and lease growth, actual losses, the effect of changes in
risk ratings, or some combination of these factors), the Company has a strategy for supplementing the allowance for
loan and lease losses, over the short term, For further information regarding our allowance for loan and lease losses,
see “Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Activity” discussion.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation under the recognicion and
measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related interpretations. Because the Company’s 2000 Stock Option Plan provides for the issuance
of options at a price of no less than the fair market value ar the date of the grant, no compensation expense was
recognized in the financial statements unless the options were modified after the grant date.

Effecrive January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) Statement
Number 123 (revised 2004) (*FAS 123 (R)"), “Share-Based Payments” on a modified prospective basis. FAS 123 (R)
requires all entities to recognize compensation expense in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments
such as stock options granted to employees. The Company is required to record compensation expense (as previous
awards continue to vest) for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding ar the date of
adoption. As a result of adopting Statement 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company’s income before provision for
income taxes and net income for the year ended December 31, 2007, was $301,000 and $251,000 lower, respectively,
and for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $221,000 and $184,000, respectively, than if it had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25. Diluted earnings per share and basic earnings
per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 would have increased $0.05 and $0.04, respectively, and for the
year ended December 31, 2006 would have increased $0.04 and $0.03, respectively, had the Company continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant and amortized over the service period using an option
pricing model. Critical assumptions that affect the estimared fair value of each option include expected stock price
volatility, dividend yields, option life and the risk-free interest rate.
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Geodwill

Business combinations involving the Company’s acquisition of the equity interests or net assets of another enterprise
or the assumption of net labilities in an acquisition of branches constituting a business may give rise to goodwill.
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in transactions accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, The value
of goodwill is ultimarely derived from the Company’s ability to generate net earnings after the acquisition. A decline
in net earnings could be indicative of a decline in the fair value of goodwill and result in impairment. For that reason,
goodwill is assessed for impairment at a reporting unit level at least annually following the year of acquisition. The
Company performed an evaluation of the goodwill, recorded as a result of the Bank of Amador acquisition, during the
fourth quarter of 2007 and determined that there was no impairment. While the Company believes all assumptions
utilized in its assessment of goadwill for impairment are reasonable and appropriate, changes in earnings, the effective
tax rate, historieal earnings multiples and the cost of capital could all cause different results for the calculation of the
present value of future cash flows.

Income Taxes
The Company files its income taxes on a consolidated basis with its subsidiaries. The allocation of income rax expense
{benefit) represents each entity’s proportionare share of the consolidated provision for income taxes.

The Company accounts for income taxes using the balance sheet method, under which deferred rax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences berween the reported amounts of assers
and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws
and rates on the date of enactment. On the consolidated balance sheet, net deferred tax assets are included in accrued
interest receivable and other assets.

The provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncerrainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 487) have been
applied to all rax posidons of the Company as of January 1, 2007, FIN 48 prescribes a recognition chreshold and
measurement standard for the financial statement recognition and measurement of an income tax position taken,
or expected to be taken, in a tax return. Oaly tax positions that met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold
on January 1, 2007 were recognized or continue to be recognized upon adoption. The benefit of a 1ax position is
recognized in the financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management
believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution
of appeals or lirigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax
positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefic
that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The
portion of the benefits assoctated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is
reflected as a liability for unrecognized rax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated
interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. The election has been made
to record interest expense related to tax exposures in tax expense, if applicable, and the exposure for penalties related
to tax exposures in tax expense, if applicable.

Overview

The Company recorded its 96th consecutive profitable quarter for the quarter ended December 31, 2007, Net
income in 2007 decreased 6.4% to $8,478,000 versus $9,062,000 in 2006. Diluted earnings per share for 2007 and
2006 were identical—$1.46. For 2007, the Company realized a return on average equity of 14.01% and a return on
average assets of 1.47%, as compared to 14.48% and 1.50% for 2006.

Net income for 2006 was $122,000 (1.3%) lower than the $9,184,000 recorded in 2003. Diluted earnings per share
in 2005 were $1.45, return on average assets was 1.54% and return on average equiry was 15.14%.
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Table One below provides a summary of the components of net income for the years indicated:

Table One: Components of Net Income
For the years ended: (doflars in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Net interest income™ § 26,749 $ 27.39 $ 26,767
Provision for loan and lease losses (450) {320} (322)
Noninterest income 2,599 2,443 2,329
Noninterest expense {14,833) (14,388) (13,493)
Provision for income taxes {5,240} {5,739) {5,792)
Tax eguivalent adjustment {347} (330) (305)
Net income $ 8,478 3 9,062 $ 9,184
Average iotal assets § 575225 $ 603,040 § 596,670
Net income as a percentage of average total assets 1.47% 1.50% 1.54%

* Fully taxable equivalent basis (FTE)

All share and per share data for 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been adjusted for 5% stock dividends distribured on
December 20, 2007, December 22, 2006, and December 23, 2005.

During 2007, total assets of the Company decreased $30,318,000 (5.0%) to a total of $573,685,000 at year-end. At
December 31, 2007, net loans toraled $394,975,000, up $11,982,000 (3.1%) from the ending balances on December
31, 2006, Deposits decreased 7.7% during 2007 resulting in ending deposit balances of $455,645,000. The Company
ended 2007 with a Tier 1 capital ratio of 9.5% and a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.7%.

Results of Operations

Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin

Net interest income represents the excess of incerest and fees earned on interest earning assets (loans, securities, Federal
funds sold and investments in time deposits} over the interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds. Net interest
margin is net interest income expressed as a percentage of average earning assets.

The Company’s fully, taxable equivalent net interest margin was 5.10% in 2007 and 5.03% in 2006, The fully taxable
equivalent net interest income was down $647,000 (2.4%) in 2007 compared to 2006.

The fully taxable equivalent interest income component decreased from $38,284,000 in 2006 to $37,825,000 in
2007, representing a 1.2% decrease. The decrease in the fully taxable equivalent interest income for 2007 compared
to the same period in 2006 is broken down by rate (up $67,000) and velume (down $526,000). The rate increase
can be attribuced to an increase in the yield on the investment portfolio from 4.41% in 2006 to 4.72% in 2007. The
increase in yield results from matured short-term securities with lower yields being redirected ro reduce borrowings
and fund the growth in loans and leaving the investment portfolio with longer maturity higher yielding investments,
thus an overall higher average yield on the existing portfolio. The volume decrease was the result of a 3.7% decrease in
average earning assets. The Company has made a decision to use the proceeds from principal reductions and maturing
investment securities to reduce the level of outstanding borrowings and provide funding for loan growth. This strategy
has reduced the average balances on investment securities by 18.3% from $162,970,000 during 2006 to $133,187,000
during 2007. Average balances of other borrowings were down $17,010,000 (36.4%) and average loan balances were
up $9,023,000 (2.4%} during the same rime period. The increase in average loans is the result of concentrated focus
on business lending.

2007 Annual Report American River Bankshares




The fully caxable equivalent interest income component increased from $33,518,000 in 2005 o $38,284,000 in
2006, representing a 14.2% increase. The increase in the fully taxable equivalent interest income for 2006 compared
to the same period in 2005 is broken down by rate (up $3,681,000) and volume (up $1,085,000). The rate increase
can be aceributed to increases implemented by the Company during 2004 and 2005 and continuing through the
end of 2006 in response to the Federal Reserve Board (the “FRB”) increases in the Federal funds and discount rates.
Increases by the FRB have resulted in seventeen 25 basis point increases from June 2004 through December 31,
2006. The overall increasing interest rate environment during chat time frame resulted in a 79 basis point increase
in the yield on average earning assets from 6.24% for 2005 wo 7.03% for 2006. The volume increase was the result
of a 1.5% increase in average earning assets and a shift in balances from lower earning investment balance to higher
earning loan balances. Average loan batances were up $21,146,000 (5.9%) in 2006 over the balances in 2005, while
average investment securities balances were down $10,066,000 (6.0%). The increase in average loans is the result of
concentrated focus on business lending, the demand for commercial real estate and the effects of a favorable local
market during this time frame.

Interest expense increased $188,000 (1.7%9} in 2007 compared to 2006. The increase in rates paid on interest bearing
liabilities resulted in an increase of $1,097,000 in interest expense. The rates paid on interest bearing liabilities
increased 16 basis points on a year-over-year basis and was a resulc of the higher overall interest rate environment, A
drop in average balances reduced much of this increase due to higher rates. The average balances on interest bearing
liabilities were $14,447,000 {3.8%) lower in 2007 versus 2006. The lower balances accounted for a $909,000 decrease
in interest expense. In 2007, average interest bearing deposits were up $2,563,000 (0.8%96) bur other borrowings were
down $17,010,000 (36.4%) creating the overall drop in interest bearing balances. In 2007, the Company focused
on reducing the higher cost borrowings; the decrease in other borrowings accounting for $806,000 in reduced
interest costs from volume compared to 2006, The Company also focused on bringing in additional checking,
money market, and savings accounts, and reducing higher priced time deposits and as a result, the average balances
on interest checking, money marker and savings accounts were up $8,033,000 (4.0%) adding $119,000 to interest
expense attributable to the increased volume, while the average time deposit balances were down $5,470,000 (4.2%)
reducing the expense by $222,000.

Interest expense increased $4,137,000 (61.3%]} in 2006 compared to 2005. The increase in rates paid on interest
bearing liabilities resulted in an increase of $3,561,000 in interest expense. The rates paid on interest bearing liabilities
increased 107 basis points on a year-over-year basis and was a result of the higher overall interest rate environment
as well as an increase in higher cost other borrowings. The increase in other borrowings is primarily the resule of
a decline in deposit balances—both interest bearing and noninterest bearing. The decline in deposit balances is
primarily related to an increase in the number of financial institutions in the Sacramento market. In addition,
the Company has seen a decline in the deposit balances in a number of its business accounts as a result of these
businesses paying down debt and/or investing in real estate or business inventory. Although these balances declined
the customer relarionships were maintained and the decreasing deposit balances were replaced with funds from other
borrowing sources. The average balances on interest bearing liabilities were $5,226,000 (1.4%) higher in 2006 versus
2005. The higher balances accounted for a $576,000 increase in interest expense. In 2006, average deposits were
down $6,879,000 (1.4%) and other borrowings were up $11,687,000 (33.4%)

Table Two, Analysis of Net Interest Margin on Earning Assets, and Table Three, Analysis of Volume and Rate
Changes on Nex Interest Income and Expenses, are provided to enable the reader to understand the components and
past trends of the Company’s interest income and expenses. Table Two provides an analysis of net interest margin
on earning assets setting forth average assets, liabilities and sharcholders’ equity; interest income earned and interest
expense paid and average rates earned and paid; and the net interest margin on earning assets. Table Three sets forth
a summary of the changes in interest income and interest expense from changes in average asset and liability balances
{volume), computed on a daily average basis, and changes in average interest rates.
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Table Two: Analysis of Net interest Margin on Earning Assets

(Taxable Equivalent Basis) (dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg Avg
Balance  interest Yield Balance Interest Yield Balance Interest Yield
Assets:
Earning Assets
Loans and leases {1) $350,488 $31,508 8.07% $381,465 331,082 8.15% 3$360,319 $26,536 7.36%
Taxable investment
securities 100,086 4,544 4.54% 129,608 5,545 4.28% 141,855 5,436 3.83%
Tax-exempt investment
securities (2) 27,745 1,436 5.18% 27,886 1,355 4.86% 25,705 1,228 4.78%
Corporate stock 407 32 7.86% 559 42 7.51% 559 40 7.16%
Federal funds scld 690 34 4.93% 359 19 5.29% 2,826 90 3.18%
Interest bearing
balances in
other banks 4,949 271 5.48% 4,917 241 4.90% 5,767 188 3.26%
Total earning assets 524,365 37,825 7.21% 544,794 38,284 7.03% 537,031 33,518 6.24%
Cash & due from banks 17,263 28,41 29,566
Other assets 39,529 35,708 35,760
Allowance for loan &
lease losses {5,932) (5,863) (5,687)
$575,225 $603.040 $596,670
E —— —3 ] ]
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity:
Interest bearing liabilities:
NOW & MMDA $173,382 3,781 2.18% $168,128 3,204 1.91% $185,634 2,247 1.21%
Savings 37,690 546 1.45% 3491 242 0.69% 39,102 150 0.38%
Time deposits 123,485 5.233 424% 128,955 5231 406% 113,719 3,249 2.86%
Other borrowings 29,680 1,516 5.11% 46,680 2,211 4,74% 35,003 1,105 3.16%
Total interest bearing
Liabilities 364,237 11,076 3.04% 378,684 10,888 2.88% 373,458 6,751 1.81%
Demand deposits 144,787 156,032 156,450
Other liabilities 5,668 5.754 6,121
Total liabilities 514,692 540,470 536,029
Shareholders’ equity 60,533 62,570 60,641
$575,225 $603,040 $596,670
————] _— —_—— =
Net interest inceme
& margin (3} $26,749 5.10% $27,396 5.03% $26,767 4.98%

(1) Loan and lease interest includes loan and lease fees of $529,000, $873,000 and §1,091,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively

(2) Includes taxable-equivalent adjustments thas primarily relate to income on certain securisies that is exempt from federal income taxes. The effective
Jederal statutory tax rate war 34.5% in 2007 and 2006 and 34.0% in 2005,

(3) Net interest margin is rampurtd 5y Jiur'ding net intevest income by total average earning assets.
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Table Three: Analysis of Volume and Rate Changes on Net Interest Income and Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2007 over 2006 (doflars in thousands)

Increase (decrease) due to change in;
Interest-earning assets:

Net loans and leases (1X2)

Taxable invesiment securities

Tax-exempt investment securities (3)

Corporate stock

Federal funds sold & other

Interest bearing balances in other banks
Total

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Other borrowings
Total

Interest differential

Year ended December 31, 2007 over 2006 (dellars in thousands)

Increase (decrease) due to change in:
Interest-earning assets:

Net loans and leases {1)2)

Taxable investment securities

Tax-exernpt investment securifies (3)

Corporate stock

Federal funds sold & other

Interest bearing balances in other banks
Total

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Other borrowings
Total

Interest differentia!

(1) The average balance of non-aceruing loans and leases is immaserial as a pevcentage of total loans and leases and, as such, bas been included in net loans .

and leases.

{2) Loan and lease fees of $529,000, $873,000 and 51,091,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, have been included

in the interest income computation.

Net

Volume Rate {4) Change

3 735 $ (309) b 426
(1,263) 262 {1,001}

N a8 81

{11} 1 (10

18 (3} 15

2 28 30

(526) 67 {459)

100 477 577

19 285 304

(222} 224 2

(806) 111 {695)

(909) 1,097 188

3 383 $ (1,030 3 (647)
Net

Volume Rate (4) Change

$ 1.557 3 2,989 1 4,546
(469) 578 109

104 23 127

2 2

{79) 8 {71)

{28} 81 53

1,085 3,681 4,766

(212) 1,169 957

(16) 108 g2

435 1,547 1,982

369 737 1,106

575 3,563 4,137

3 509 3 120 $ 629

3) Includes raxable-cquivalent adjustments that primarily relate to income on cersain securities thas is exempt from federal income taxes. The effective

Sederal statutory tax rate was 34.5% in 2007 and 2006 and 34.0% in 2005.

(4} The ratefvolume variance bas been included in the rate variance.
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Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

The Company provided $450,000 for loan and lease losses in 2007 as compared to $320,000 for 2006. Net loan
charge-offs for 2007 were $441,000 as compared to $125,000 in 2006. In 2007, net loan charge-offs as a percentage
of average loans outstanding were .11% compared to .03% in 2006. In 2005, the Company provided $322,000 for
toan and lease losses and net charge-offs were $139,000. For further informarion please see “Allowance for Loan and
Lease Losses Activiey.”

Service Charges and Fees and Other Income
Table Four below provides a summary of the components of noninterest income for the periods indicated

{(dollars in thousands):

Table Four: Components of Noninterest Income

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Service charges on deposit accounts § 743 $ 783 $ 672
Merchant fee income 544 549 509
Bank owned life insurance 405 256 179
Income from residential lending division am 192 283
Accounts receivable servicing fees 244 372 356
Gain on sale of securities 1 1 48
QOther 251 250 282

$ 2,599 $ 2,443 $ 2,329

Noninterest income was up $156,000 (6.4%) to $2,599,000 in 2007 from the 2006 level. The increase in noninterest
income can be attributed to increases in bank owned life insurance (up $149,000 or 58.2%) and residential lending
fee income (up $209,000 or 108.9%). The Company experienced a decrease in accounts receivable servicing fees
(down $128,000 or 34.4%). The increase in income from bank owned life insurance was the resulr of the Company
purchasing additional policies near the end of the fourch quarter of 2006. The increase in fees from residential
lending relates to the Company’s decision to expand is Residential Lending Division by adding four (4) mortgage
specialists. These increases were offset by a reduction of fees from accounts receivable servicing which resulted from
lower overall volume.

Noninterest income was up $114,000 (4.9%) o $2,443,000 in 2006 from the 2005 level. The increase in noninterest
income can be actributed to increases in fees from service charges {up $111,000 or 16.5%), increases in fees from
merchant income (up $40,000 or 7.9%), and an increase in bank owned life insurance. The Company experienced a
decrease in residential lending fee income (down $91,000 or 32.2%). The increase in service charges resulted from a
restructuring of the deposit service fee tables. The increase in income from bank owned life insurance is related to the
overall increase in interest rates. The income from these instruments is interest rate driven, thus increases in interest
rates will result in higher income. The decrease in income from residential lending is also reflective of the increase in
rates—as interest rates increase the number of refinances decreases.
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Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and benefits, which include commissions, were $8,396,000 (up $580,000 or 7.4%) for 2007 as compared
to $7,816,000 in 2006. The salary and benefit expense related ro the expanded Residential Lending Division added
$£259,000 (or 44.7% of the increase). Payroll taxes (up $34,000), stock option expense {up $57,000) group health
insurance {up $106,000), and retirement costs {up $43,000) also added to the increased expense. At the end of 2007,
the full-time equivalent seaff was 124, down 5 from the 129 ar the end of 2006.

Salaries and benefits were $7,816,000 (up $838,000 or 12.3%) for 2006 as compared ro $6,958,000 in 2005. The
increase is primarily the result of market-condition salary adjustments, additional administrative staff to address the
burden of more stringent compliance and regularory issues, and the addition of service personnel to help achieve
strategic growth in business banking. In addition, the adoption of FAS 123(R) in January of 2006 resulted in an
increase in salaries and benefits of $134,000 during 2006. See the Notes to the financial statements for additional
information on FAS 123(R)}. Ac the end of 2006, the full-time equivalent staff was 129, up 6 from the 123 at the
end of 2005,

Occupancy, Furniture and Equipment

Occupancy expense increased $14,000 (1.0%) during 2007 to $1,398,000, up from $1,384,000 in 2006, The
majority of the increase relates 1o normal rent increases in the Company's leased facilities. Furniture and equipment
expense was $691,000 in 2007 compared to $812,000 in 2006, representing a $121,000 (14.9%) decrease. The
decrease in furniture and equipment expense relates to less amortization of technology related equipment. Although
still being used, certain equipment has reached its fully depreciared life.

Occupancy expense increased $155,000 (12.6%) during 2006 1o $1,384,000, up from $1,229,000 in 2005. The
majority of the increase relates o normal rent increases in the Company’s leased facilities and costs associated
with the Company’s new administration headquarters office lease at 3100 Zinfandel Drive, Rancho Cordova CA,
which was occupied in October 2005. The new office contributed $126,000 to the increased occupancy expense.
Furniture and equipment expense was $812,000 in 2006 compared to $918,000 in 2005, representing a $106,000
(11.5%j} decrease. The decrease in furniture and equipment expense relates to less amortization of technology related
equipment. Although still being used, certain equipment has reached its fully depreciated ife.

Other Expenses

Table Five below provides a summary of the components of noninterest expense for the periods indicared

{(dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Professional fees 13 832 $ 778 $ 732
Telephone and postage 420 411 439
Directors’ expense 378 EXR! 429
Outsourced item processing 374 495 489
Advertising and promotion 338 357 331
Stationery and supplies - 322 335 303
Amortization of intangible assets 308 330 352
Donations 52 88 B2
Other operating expenses 1,314 1,271 1,231

$ 4,348 $ 4376 $ 4,388
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Other expenses were $4,348,000 (down $28,000 or 0.6%) for 2007 as compared to $4,376,000 for 2006. Professional
fees increased $54,000 (6.9%) and directors’ expense increased $67,000 (21.5%). These increases were offset by
reductions in outsourced item processing (down $121,000 or 24.4%) and advertising, promotion and donations
(down $45,000 or 10.1%). The increase in professional fees relates to higher legal and other professional services to
comply with changes in the regulatory environment and to resolve problem loans. Directors’ expense increased due
to higher overall fees paid to the Company directors and higher expense related to stock options accounted for under
FAS 123 (R). Item processing expense was lower in 2007 as the Company settled a pricing issue with its vendor. The
overhead efficiency ratio on a taxable equivalent basis for 2007 was 49.5% as compared to 47.1% in 2006.

Other expenses were $4,376,000 {down $12,000 or 0.3%) for 2006 as compared to $4,388,000 for 2005. Professional
fees increased $46,000 (6.3%) and directors’ expense decreased $150,000 (35.0%). The increase in professional fees
relates to the Company's decision in 2005 to outsource our network administration and some other I'T related areas.
The decrease in directors expense relates to no expense in 2006 from the former Gross-Up Plan (the “Plan”) as it was
fully funded in 2005—the Company recorded $148,000 in expense in 2005 related to the Plan. The Plan, which was
terminated in August of 2005, compensated for the tax effects of the exercise of nonstatutory stock options. The Plan
named certain non-employee directors as participants and applied only to those oprions granted on August 25, 1995.
In addition, the 2005 directors’ expense included $37,000 more in payment to retired directors that in 2006. The
2006 directors’ expense also included $87,000 in stock option expense related to FAS 123 (R), which was adopted
by the Company on January 1, 2006. The overhead efficiency ratio on a taxable equivalent basis for 2006 was 47.1%
as compared to 45.2% in 2005.

Provision for Taxes

The effective tax rate on income was 38.2%, 38.8% and 38.7% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, The effective
tax rate was greater than the federal statutory tax race due to stare tax expense {net of federal rax effect) of $919,000,
$1,006,000 and $1,033,000 in these years. Tax-exempt income of $1,006,000, $955,000 and $896,000 from
investment securities in these years helped to reduce the effective rax rate.

Balance Sheet Analysis

The Company’s total assets were $573,685,000 at December 31, 2007 as compared to $604,003,000 at December
31, 2006, representing a decrease of $30,318,000 (5.09%). The average balances of toral assets during 2007 were
$575,225,000 which represents a decrease of $27,815,000 (4.6%) compared to the 2006 total of $603,040,000.

Investment Securities

The Company classifies its investment securities as trading, held-to-marurity or available-for-sale. The Company’s
intent is to hold all securities classified as held-ro-marurity until maturity and management believes that it has the
ability to do so. Securities available-for-sale may be sold to implement asset/liability management strategies and in
response to changes in interest rates, prepayment rates and similar factors. Table Six summarizes the values of the
Company’s investment securities held on December 31 of the years indicated.
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Table Six: Investment Securities Composition

(dodlars in thousands)
Avaiiable-for-sale (at fair value) 2007 2006 2005
Debt securities:
U.5. Government agencies $ 16,506 $ 28323 3 49,119
Martgage-backed securities 31,066 33,236 36,326
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 31,111 41,224 37.106
Corporate debt securities 1,003 1,014
Equity securities:
Corporate stock 287 623 624
Total available-for-sale investment securities $ 78570 § 104,209 $ 124,189

Held-to-maturity (at amortized cost)

Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 34,754 § 4403 $ 45012

Total held-to-maturity investment securities § 34754 § 44,031 $ 45012

See Table Fifteen for a breakdown of the investment securides by marurity and the corresponding weighted
average vields.

Loans and Leases

The Company concentrates its lending activities in the following principal areas: (1) commercial; {2) commercial
real estate; (3) multi-family real estate; (4) real estate construction (both commercial and residential); {5) residential
real estate; (6) lease financing receivable; (7) agriculture; and (8) consumer loans. At December 31, 2007, these
categories accounted for approximately 26%, 48%, 2%, 16%, 2%, 1%, 2% and 3%, respectively, of the Company’s
loan pordfolio. This mix was relatively unchanged compared to 22%, 45%, 1%, 23%, 2%, 2%, 2% and 3% at
December 31, 2006. Conrtinuing economic activity in the Company’s market area, new borrowers developed through
the Company’s marketing effores, and credit extensions expanded to existing borrowers resulted in the Company
originating over $161 million in new loans. The Company reported net increases in balances for commercial
($19,608,000 or 22.8%), commercial real estate ($16,131,000 or 9.2%), multi-family real estate ($2,212,000 or
6.196), residential real estare (§596,000 or 6.9%), and agriculture ($815,000 or 11.1%). The Company experienced
a decrease in real estate construction ($24,292,000 or 26.9%), lease financing receivable ($2,305,000 or 36.2%), and
consumer loans ($962,000 or 8.2%} as a result of paydowns. Table Seven summarizes the composition of the loan
and lease portfolio for the past five years as of December 31.
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Table Seven: Loan and Lease Portfolio Compaosition

(dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Commercial § 105,467 $ 85,859 $ 779N $ 66,864 $ 57,346
Real estate:
Commercial 191,774 175,643 154,500 166,263 142,249
Multi-family 5,830 3,618 3,767 2,660 5.301
Construction 65,022 20,314 103,048 90,162 37,434
Residential 9,285 8,689 4,680 5,236 1,508
Lease financing receivable 4,070 6,375 7.967 9,994 9,276
Agriculture 8,177 7,362 8,129 8,252 8,027
Consumer 10,750 11,712 11,900 9,417 5,950
401,375 389,572 371,962 358,848 267,091
Deferred lpan fees, net (517) (705) 712} {885) {678
Allowance for kan and
lease losses (5.883) (5,874) {5,679) (5,496) (3,949}
Total net loans and leases $ 394,975 $ 382,993 $ 365,571 § 352,467 $ 262,464

A significant portion of the Company's loans and leases are direct loans and leases made to individuals and local
businesses. The Company relies substantially on local promotional activity and personal conracts by American River
Bank officers, directors and employees to compete with other financial institutions. The Company makes loans and
leases to borrowers whose applications include a sound purpose and a viable primary repayment source, generally
suppotted by a secondary source of repayment.

Commercial loans consist of credit lines for operaring needs, loans for equipment purchases, working capiral, and
various other business loan products. Consumer loans include a range of traditional consumer loan products such
as personal lines of credit and loans to finance purchases of autos, boats, recreational vehicles, mobile homes and
various other consumer items. Construction loans are generally comprised of commitments ro customers within the
Company’s service area for construction of commercial properties, multi-family properties and custom and semi-
custom single-family residences. Other real estate loans consist primarily of loans secured by first trust deeds on
commercial and residential properties typically with macurities from 3 to 10 years and original loan to value rarios
generally from 65% to 75%. Agriculture loans consist primarily of vineyard loans and development loans to plant
vineyards. In general, except in the case of loans under SBA programs or Farm Services Agency guarantees, the
Company does not make long-term mortgage loans; however, American River Bank has a residential lending division
to assist customers in securing most forms of longer term single-family mortgage financing. American River Bank
acts as a broker between American River Bank's clients and the loan wholesalers. American River Bank receives an
origination fee for loans closed.

Subprime loans generally refer to residential mortgages made to higher-risk borrowers with lower credit and/or
income histories. Many of these subprime loans were made with adjustable interest rares that reser upward after an
introductory period. Such subprime loans coupled with declines in housing prices have led to an increase in default
rates resulting in many instances of increased foreclosure rates as the adjustable interest rates reset to higher levels.
The Company does not have any “subprime” loans on its books at December 31, 2007.
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Average net loans and leases in 2007 were $390,488,000 which represents an increase of $9,023,000 (2.4%) over
the average in 2006. Average net loans and leases in 2006 were $381,465,000 which represents an increase of
$21,146,000 (5.99%) over the average in 2005. Loan growth in 2007 and 2006 resulted from a concenrrated effore
to increase commercial relationships, a favorable economy in the Company’s markec area, new borrowers developed
through the Company’s markering efforts, and credit cxtensions expanded to existing borrowers,

Risk Elements

The Company assesses and manages credit risk on an ongoing basis through a toral credit culture that emphasizes
excellent credit quality, extensive internal monitoring and established formal lending policies. Additionally,
the Company contracts with an outside loan review consultant to periodically review the existing loan and lease
portfolio. Management believes its abiliry o identify and assess risk and return characteristics of the Company’s loan
and lease pordolio is critical for profitability and growth. Management strives to continue its emphasis on credit
quality in the loan and lease approval process, active credit administration and regular monttoring. With this in
mind, management has designed and implemented a comprehensive loan and lease review and grading system rhat
functions to continually assess the credit risk inherent in the loan and lease portfolio,

Ultimately, underlying trends in economic and business cycles may influence credir quality. American River Bank’s
business is concentrated in the Sacramento Metropelitan Statistical Area, which is a diversified economy, bur with a
large State of California government presence and employment base, in Sonoma County, through North Coast Bank,
a division of American River Bank, whose business is focused on businesses within the three communities in which
it has offices (Santa Rosa, Windsor, and Healdsburg) and in Amador County, through Bank of Amador, a division
of American River Bank, whose business is focused on businesses and consumers within the three communities in
which it has offices (Jackson, Pioneer, and lone) as well as a diversified residential construction loan business in
numerous Northern California counties. The economy of Sonoma County is diversified with professional services,
manufacturing, agriculture and real estate investment and construction, while the economy of Amador County is
reliant upon government, services, retail trade, manufacruring industries and Indian gaming.

The Company has significant extensions of credit and commitments to extend credic chat are secured by real esrate.
The ultimate repayment of these loans is generally dependent on personal or business cash Hows or the sale or
refinancing of the real estate. The Company monitors the effects of current and expected marker conditions and
other factors on the collectability of real estate loans. The more significant factors management considers involve the
following: lease rate and terms, absorption and sale rates; real estate values, supply and demand facrors, and rates of
return; operating expenses; inflation; and sufficiency of repayment sources independent of the real estate including,
in some instances, persenal guarantees.

In extending credit and commirments to borrowers, the Company generally requires collateral and/or guarantees as
security. The repayment of such loans is expected to come from cash flow or from proceeds from the sale of selected
assets of the borrowers. The Company’s requirement for collateral and/or guarantees is determined on a case-by-case
basis in connection with managemenct’s evaluation of the creditworthiness of the borrower. Collateral held varies but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, income-producing properties, residences
and other real property. The Company secures its collateral by perfecting its security interest in business assets,
obrtaining deeds of trust, or outright possession among other means.

In management’s judgment, a concentration exists in real estate loans which represented approximarely 68.0% of the
Company’s loan and lease portfolio at December 31, 2007, down from 71.4% ar December 31, 2006. Management
believes thar the residential land and residential construction portion of the Company’s loan portfolio carries more
than the normal credit risk it has seen in the past several years, due primarily ro severely curtailed
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demand for new and resale residential property, a large supply of unsold residential land and new and resate homes,
and observed reductions in values throughout the Company’s market area. Management has responded by evaluating
loans that it considers to carry any material risk above the normal risk of collectability, and taking actions where
possible to reduce credit risk exposure by methods thar include, bur are not limited to, seeking liquidacion of the
loan by the borrower, seeking additional rangible collateral or other repayment support, converting the property
through judicial or non-judicial foreclosure proceedings, and other collection techniques. Management currently
believes thar it maintains its atlowance for loan and lease loss at levels adequate to reflect the loss risk inherent in its
total loan portfolio.

Although management believes the Company’s real estate concentration to have no more than the normal risk of
collectability, a substantial further decline in the economy in general, or an additional decline in real estate values in
the Company’s primary market areas in particular, could have an adverse impact on the collectability of these loans
and require an increase in the provision for loan and lease losses which could adversely affect the Company’s furure
prospects, results of operations, profitability and stock price. Management believes that its lending policies and
underwriting standards will tend to minimize losses in an economic downturn; however, there is no assurance that
losses will not occur under such circumstances. The Company's loan policies and underwriting standards include,
but are not limited to, the following: (1) maintaining a thorough understanding of the Company’s service area
and originating a significant majority of its loans within that arca, (2) maintaining a thorough understanding of
borrowers’ knowledge, capacity, and marker position in their field of expertise, (3) basing real estate loan approvals
not only on market demand for the project, bur also on the borrowers™ capacity to support the project financially in
the event it does not perform to expectations (whether sale or income performance}, and (4) maintaining conforming
and prudent loan to value and loan to cost ratios based on independent outside appraisals and ongoing inspection
and analysis by the Company’s lending officers or contracted third-party professionals.

Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans and Leases

Management generally places loans and leases on nonaccrual status when they become 90 days past due, unless the
loan or lease is well secured and in the process of collection. Loans and leases are charged off when, in the opinion of
management, collection appears unlikely.

The recorded investments in nonaccrual loans and leases thar were accruing and 90 days or more past due totaled
$7,440,000 and $78,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The change in nonaccrual loans primarily
relates to two loans totaling $6,648,000 or 89.4% of the total nonaccrual loans, The first loan in the approximate
amount of $4.6 million is a loan in which the Company participates with other lenders. The Company has a net
29% interest in the loan and a loan balance of $1.3 million. The loan had an original commitment of $6.9 million
and loan to cost ratio of 75%. The loan is a lor development loan for 29 singte family residential lots, 47 townhouses
and 3 commercial lots located in Amador County with a current appraisal that exceeds the principal and accrued
interest balance of the loan. Non-judicial foreclosure proceedings were commenced related to the loan by the filing
of a notice of default. The second loan in the approximate 2mount of $5.3 million is a commercial loan for 2 mini-
storage facility in El Dorado County wich an original loan 1o value ratio dating back to 2002 of 59.8% and a current
appraisal that exceeds the principal and accrued interest balance of the loan. Non-judicial foreciosure proceedings
were commenced related to the second loan by the filing of a notice of default and legal proceedings where initiated
related to judicial foreclosure and the appointment of a receiver to protect the Company’s interest in rents. Both
of these loans have been evaluated for impairment in accordance with FASB 114 and have been assigned specific
reserves. The relared allowance for losses for the nonacerual loans and leases at December 31, 2007 and December
31, 2006 was $964,000 and $26,000, respectively. Management believes thar the allowance allocations are adequate
for the inherent risk of those loans and leases. The average recorded investment in nonaccrual loans and leases for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $872,000, $137,000 and $271,000, respectively.
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Interest due bur excluded from interest income on nonacerual loans and leases was $252,000 during 2007 and not
significant during 2006 and 2005. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, interest income recognized from payments received on
nonaccrual loans and leases was not significant,

Table Eight below sets forth nonaccrual loans and leases and loans and leases past due 90 days or more as of year-end
for the past five years,

Table Eight: Non-Performing Loans and Leases
(dollars in thousands)

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Past due 90 days or more
and still accruing:
Cornmercial $ 24 1 2
Real estate 3 455 § 13
Lease financing receivable 3 1
Consurner and other
Nonaccrual:
Commercial 148 52
Real estate 6,787 12 15 113
Lease financing receivable s0 53 52 71 179
Consumer and other

Total non-performing
loans and leases $ 7.440 $ 78 $ 9 1 247 s 181

There were no loan or lease concentrations in excess of 10% of total loans and leases not otherwise disclosed as a
category of loans and leases as of December 31, 2007. Management is not aware of any potential problem loans or
leases, which were accruing and current at December 31, 2007 or 2006, where serious doubt exists as to the ability
of the borrower to comply with the present repayment terms.

Impaired Loans

The Company considers 2 loan to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that
it will be unable to collect all amounts due (principal and interest) according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. The measurement of impairment may be based on (i) the present value of the expected cash flows of the
impaired loan discounted ar the loan's original effective interest rate, (i} the observable market price of the impaired
loan or (iii) the fair value of the collateral of a collateral-dependent loan. The Company does not apply this definition
to smaller-balance loans that are collectively evaluated for credic risk. In assessing impairment, the Company reviews
all nonaccrual loans with outstanding principal balances in excess of $250,000. The recorded investment in loans
and leases that were considered to be impaired totaled $6,634,000 ar December 31, 2007 and had a related valuation
allowance of $764,000. The average recorded investment in impaired loans and leases duting 2007 was approximately
$1,412,000. There were no loans or leases considered to be impaired at December 31, 2006.
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Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Activity

The Company maintains an allowance for loan and lease losses (‘ALLL”) to cover probable losses inherent in the
loan and lease portfolio, which is based upon management’s estimated range of those losses. The ALLL is established
through a provision for loan and lease losses and is increased by provisions charged against current earnings and
recoveries and reduced by charge-offs. Actual losses for loans and leases can vary significantly from this estimate. The
methodology and assumptions used to calculate the allowance are continually reviewed as to their appropriateness
given the most recent losses realized and other factors that influence the estimarion process. The model assumptions
and resulting allowance level are adjusted accordingly as these factors change.

The adequacy of the ALLL and the level of the related provision for loan and lease losses is determined based on
management’s judgment after consideration of numerous facrors including but not limited to: (i) local and regional
economic conditions, (if) borrowers’ financial condition, (iii) loan impairmenc and the relared level of expected
charge-offs, (iv) cvaluation of industry trends, {v) industry and other concentrations, (vi} loans and leases which
are contractually current as to payment terms but demonstrate a higher degree of risk as identified by management,
(vii) continuing evaluations of the performing loan portfolio, (viii) ongoing review and evaluation of problem loans
idencified as having loss potential, (ix) quarterly review by the Board of Directors, and (x) assessments by banking
regulators and other third parties. Management and the Board of Directors evaluate the ALLL and determine its
appropriate level considering objective and subjective measures, such as knowledge of the borrowers’ business,
valuation of collaceral, the determination of impaired loans or leases and exposure to potential losses.

The allowance for loan and lease losses totaled $5,883,000 or 1.47% of total loans and leases at December 31, 2007,
$5,874,000 or 1.51% of total loans and leases at December 31, 2006, and $5,679.000 or 1.53% at December 31,
2005. The Company establishes general reserves in accordance with Statement of Accounting Standards {“SFAS”)
No. 5., “Accounting for Contingencies,” and specific reserves in accordance with SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan”. The ALLL is maintained by categories of the loan and lease portfolio based
on loan type and loan rating; however, the entire allowance is available to cover acrual loan and lease losses. While
management uses available information to recognize possible losses on loans and leases, future additions to the
allowance may be necessary, based on changes in economic conditions and other matters. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s ALLL. Such
agencies may require the Company to provide additions to the allowance based on their judgment of information
available to them at the time of their examination.

It is the policy of management to maintain the allowance for loan and lease losses at a level believed to be adequare
for known and inherent risks in the portfolio. Our methodology incorporates a variety of risk considerations, boch
quantitative and qualirative, in establishing an allowance for loan and lease losses that management believes is
appropriate at each reporting date. Based on information currently available to analyze inherent credit risk, including
economic factors, overall credic qualiy, historical delinquencies and a history of actual charge-offs, management
believes that the provision for loan and lease losses and the allowance for loan and lease losses are prudent and
adequate. Adjustments may be made based on differences from estimated loan and lease growth, the types of loans
consticuting this growth, changes in risk ratings within the portfolio, and general economic conditions. However, no
prediction of the ultimate level of loans and leases charged off in future periods can be made with any certainry.
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Table Nine below summarizes, for the periods indicated, the activity in the ALLL.

Table Nine: Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

{dollars in thousands)

Average loans and leases outstanding

Allowance for loan & lease
losses at beginning of period
Loans and leases charged off:

Commercial

Real estate

Consumer

Lease financing receivable
Total
Recoveries of loans and leases
previously charged off:

Commercial

Real estate

Consumer
Lease financing receivable
Total

Net loans and leases charged off
Allowance acquired in merger
Additions ta allowance charged
10 operating expenses
Allowance for loan and lease losses
at end of period
Ratio of net charge-offs to average
loans and leases outstanding
Provision for loan and lease losses
to average loans and leases
outstanding

Allowance for loan and lease losses to

loans and leases, net of deferred
fees, at end of period

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 350,488 § 381,465 $ 360,319 $ 277.647 $ 248,342
$ 5,874 $ 58679 $ 5496 $ 3949 $ 3197
3™ YA 72 13
72
105 1 1 8
70 78 134 268 333
548 150 206 269 354
41 6 ] 57 113
a7
9 2 3

66 10 56
107 25 67 60 160
441 125 139 209 194

861

450 320 322 895 946
§ 5883 $  S5.874 § 586719 $ 5496 $ 3849
1% L03% .04% .08% .08%
12% .08% 09% 32% 38%
1.47% 1.51% 1.53% 1.54% 1.48%

As part of its loan review process, management has allocated the overall allowance based on specific identified problem
loans and leases, qualitative factors, uncertainty inherent in the estimation process and historical loss dara. A risk

exists thar future losses cannot be precisely quantified or attribured to particular loans or leases or classes of foans and
leases. Management continues to evaluate the loan and lease portfolio and assesses current economic conditions that
will affect management’s conclusion as 1o furure allowance levels. Table Ten below summarizes the allocation of the
allowance for loan and lease losses for the five years ended December 31, 2007,
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Table Ten: Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses by Loan Category

{dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Percent Percent Percent Percent Parcent
of loans of loans of loans of loans of loans
in each in each in each in each in each
category category category category category
to total to tetal to total to total to total
Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans
Commercial $ 1,369 26.3% $ 1,269 22.1% $ 1,056 21.0% $ 1,028 186% $ 865 215%
Real estate 4,314 68.0% 4,332 71.4% 3,948 71.5% 3,825 73.7% 2,579 69.8%
Agriculture 8 2.0% 7 1.9% 213 2.2% 10 2.3% 201 3.0%
Consumer 108 2.7% 131 3.0% 246 3.2% 220 26% 91 2.2%
Lease financing
receivable 84 1.0% 135 1.6% 216 2.1% 313 2.8% 213 3.5%
Total allocated § 5883 1000% 3 5874 i000% §$ 5679 100.0% § 5496 1000% § 3,949 100.0%

The allocation presented should not be interpreted as an indication thar charges to the allowance for loan and lease
losses will be incurred in these amounts or proportions, or that the portien of the allowance allocated to each loan
and lease category represents the total amounts available for charge-offs that may occur wichin these categories.

Other Real Estate
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had $61,000 and zero in other real estate properties, respectively.

Deposits

At December 31, 2007, rotal deposits were $455,645,000 representing a decrease of $38,230,000 (7.7%) compared
to the December 31, 2006 balance of $493,875,000. The Company’s depasit growth plan for 2007 was to concentrate
its efforts on increasing noninterest-bearing demand, interest-bearing money marker and NOW accounts, and
savings accounts. However, due to the competitive rate environment, the Company experienced decreases in
noninterest bearing ($27,908,000 or 17.4%) and savings ($1,254,000 or 3.4%), bur did have increases in money
market ($4,632,000 or 3.8%) and NOW accounts ($1,763,000 or 4.2%). During 2007, the Company chose not to
compete with the higher rate paying competitors and as a result time deposits decreased $15,463,000 (11.7%) from
the total of $131,829,000 at December 31, 2006.
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Other Borrowed Funds

Other berrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2007 consist of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(the “FHLB"). The following table summarizes these borrowings (doflars in theusands):

2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Short-term borrowings:

FHLB advances § 51,603 3.61% § 37.270 5.08% $ 39,386 3.73%
Total short-term borrowings $ 51,603 3.61% § 37,270 5.08% $ 39386 373%
Long-term borrowings:

FHLB advances $ 5000 4.92% $ 4,270 4.10%
Total long-term borrowings $ 5,000 4.92% $ 4270 4.10%

The maximum amount of short-term borrowings at any month-end during 2007, 2006 and 2003, was $51,603,000,
$64,489,000, and $39,386,000, respectively. The FHLB advances are collateralized by loans and securities pledged
to the FHLB. The following is a breakdewn of rates and maturities on FHLB advances (dellars in thousands):

Short Term Long Term

Amount $ 51,603 N/A
Maturity 2008
Average rate 3.61%

The Company has also been issued a total of $3,750,000 in letters of eredit by the FHLB which have been pledged 1o
secure Local Agency Deposits. The letters of credit act as a guarantee of payment to cerrain third parties in accordance
with specified terms and conditions. The leters of credit were not drawn upon in 2007 or 2006 and management
does not expect to draw upon these lines in the future.

Capital Resources

The current and projected capital position of the Company and the impact of capiral plans and long-term strategies is
reviewed regularly by management. The Company's capital pesition represents the level of capiral available to support
continuing operations and expansion.

On September 20, 2001, the Company announced a plan to repurchase, as conditions warrant, up to 5% annually
of the Company’s common stock. Each year the Company may repurchase up to 5% of the shares outstanding
(adjusted for stock splits or stock dividends). In addition to the 5% repurchase plan, the Company announced an
additional plan on October 17, 2007 that allowed the Company to purchase up ro $2,000,000 in additional shares
for the calendar year 2007. The repurchases are to be made from time to time in the open market as conditions allow
and will be structured to comply with SEC Rule 10b-18. Management reports monthly to the Board of Directors
on the status of the repurchase program. The Board of Directors has reserved the right to suspend, terminate,
modify or cancel these repurchase programs at any time for any reason. The Company repurchased 406,350 shares
in 2007, 285,152 shares in 2006, 88,558 shares in 2005, 11,304 shares in 2004, 1,824 shares in 2003 and 79,759
shares in 2002.
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The Company and American River Bank are subject to certain regulatory capital requirements administered by
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Failure o
meet these minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary,
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct marerial effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statemencs. Under capiral adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, banks
must meet specific capiral guidelines thar involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilicies and cereain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s and American River Bank's
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualicative judgments by the regulators about components,
risk weightings and other factors. At December 31, 2007, sharcholders’ equity was $59,973,000, representing a
decrease of $2,398,000 (3.8%) from $62,371,000 at December 31, 2006. This decrease was atcributable principally
to the retention of earnings offset by the payment of cash dividends and the repurchase of Company stock. In 2006,
shareholders’ equity decreased $375,000 {0.6%) from 2005. The ratio of total risk-based capital to risk adjusted
assets was 10.7% at December 31, 2007 compared to 11.6% at December 31, 2006. Tier 1 risk-based capiral ro risk-
adjusted assets was 9.5% ac December 31, 2007 and 10,3% at December 31, 2006.

Table Eleven below fists the Company’s actual capital ratios at December 31, 2007 and 2006 as well as the minimum
capital ratios for capital adequacy.

Table Eleven: Capital Ratios

Minimum
Regulatory
At December 31, Capital
Capital to Risk-Adjusted Assets 2007 2006 Requirements
Leverage ratio 7.7% 7.8% 4.00%
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital 9.5% 10.3% 4.00%
Total Risk-Based Capital 10.7% 11.6% 8.00%

Capital ratios are reviewed on a regular basis ro ensure that capital exceeds the prescribed regulatory minimums
and is adequate 1o meer future needs. American River Bank's ratios are in excess of the regulatory definition of
“well capitalized.”

Management believes that the Company’s capital is adequate to support current operations and anticipated growth,
cash dividends and future capital requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Market Risk Management

OVERVIEW. Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. The Company’s marker
risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in its loan and deposit functions. The goal for managing the assets
and liabilities of the Company is to maximize shareholder value and earnings while mainaining a high quality balance
sheet without exposing the Company to undue interest rate risk. The Board of Directors has overall responsibilicy for
the interest rate risk management policies. The Company has a Risk Management Committee that establishes and
monitors guidelines to control the sensitivity of earnings to changes in interest rates.

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT. Activities involved in asset/liability management include, but are not limired
1o, lending, accepting and placing deposits and investing in securities. Interest rate risk is the primary marker risk
associated with asset/liability management. Sensitivity of earnings to interest rate changes arises when yields on assers

2007 Annual Report American River Bankshares




change in a different rime period or in a different amount from thar of interest costs on liabilities. To mitgare interest
rate risk, the structure of the consolidated balance sheet is managed with the goal that movements of interest rates
on assets and liabilities are correlated and contribute to earnings even in periods of volatile interest races. The asset/
liability management policy sets limits on the acceprable amount of variance in net interest margin and markert value
of equity under changing interest environments. The Company uses simulation models to forecast earnings, net
interest margin and market value of equiry.

Simulation of earnings is the primary ool used to measure the sensitivity of earnings to interest rate changes. Using
computer-modeling techniques, the Company is able to estimate the potential impact of changing interest rates on
earnings. A balance sheet forecast is prepared quarterly using inputs of actual loans and leases, securities and interest
bearing liabilities {i.e. deposits/borrowings) positions as the beginning base. The forecast balance sheet is processed
against three interest rate scenarios. The scenarios include a 200 basis poinc rising rate forecast, a flat rate forecast
and a 200 basis poinr falling rate forecast which take place within a one year time frame. The net interest income
is measured during the year assuming a gradual change in rates over the twelve-month hoerizon. The simulation
maodeling indicated below atempts to estimate changes in the Company’s net interest income utilizing a forecast
balance sheer projected from year-end balances. Table Twelve below summarizes the effect on net interest income
{NII) of 2 2200 basis point change in interest rates as measured against a constant rate {no change) scenario.

Table Twelve: Interest Rate Risk Simulation of Net Interest as of December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)

$ Change in NIl

Variation from a from Current
constant rate scenario 12 Month Horizon
+200bp ¢ 51
-200bp $ (298}

The simulations of earnings do not incorporate any management actions, which might moderate the negative
consequences of interest race deviations. Therefore, they do not reflect likely actual results, but serve as reasonable
estimates of interest rate risk.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS. Interest rate sensidivity is a function of the repricing characeeristics
of the portfolio of assets and liabilities. These repricing characteristics are the time frames within which the interest-
bearing assets and liabilities are subject to change in interest rates either at replacement, repricing or maturity. Interest
rate sensitivity management focuses on the marurity of assets and liabilities and their repricing during periods of
changes in marker interest rates, Interest rate sensitivity is measured as the difference berween the volumes of assets
and liabilities in the current portfolio that are subject to repricing at various time horizons. The differences are known
as interest sensitivity gaps. A positive cumulative gap may be equated to an asser sensitive position., An asset sensitive
position in 2 rising interest rate environment will cause a bank’s interest rate margin to expand. This results as fleating
or variable rate loans reprice more rapidly than fixed rate certificates of deposit that reprice as they mature over dme.
Conversely, a declining interest rate environment will cause the opposite effect. A negative cumuladve gap may be
equated to a liabilicy sensitive position. A liability sensitive position in a rising interest rate environment will cause a
bank’s interest rate margin to contrace, while a declining interest rate environment will have the opposite effect.
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Inflation

The impact of inflation on a financial institution differs significantly from that exerted on manufacturing, or other
commercial concerns, primarily because its assets and liabilities are largely monetary. In general, inflation primarily
affects the Company through its effecr on market rates of interest, which affects the Company’s ability to atract
loan customers. Inflation affects the growth of toral assets by increasing the level of loan demand, and potentially
adversely affects capital adequacy because foan growth in inflationary periods can increase at rates higher than the
rate that capital grows through retention of earnings which may be generated in the future. In additien to its effects
on interest rates, inflation increases overall operating expenses. Inflation has not had a marerial effect upon the results
of operations of the Company during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Liquidity

Liquidity management refers to the Company's ability to provide funds on an ongoing basis to meet fluctuations
in deposit levels as well as the credit needs and requirements of its clients. Both assets and Habilities contribute w
the Company’s liquidity position. Federal funds lines, short-term investments and securities, and loan and lease
repayments contribure to liquidiry, along with deposit increases, while loan and lease funding and deposit withdrawals
decrease liquidity. The Company assesses the likelihood of projected funding requirements by reviewing historical
funding patterns, current and forecasted economic conditions and individual client funding needs. Commitments to
fund loans and outstanding standby letters of credit at December 31, 2007 were approximately $112,633,000 and
$7,537,000, respectively. Such loan commitments relate primarily 1o revolving lines of credit and other commercial
loans and to real estate construction loans. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire withour being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Company’s sources of liquidity consist of cash and due from correspondent banks, evernight funds sold w
correspondent banks, unpledged markerable investments and loans held for sale. On December 31, 2007,
consolidated liquid assets totaled $47.1 million or 8.2% of total assets compared to $68.7 million or 11.4% of total
assets on Diecember 31, 2006. In addidon to liquid assets, the Company maintains short-term lines of credit in the
amount of $52,000,000 with correspondent banks. At December 31, 2007, the Company had $52,000,000 available
under these credit lines. Additionally, American River Bank is a member of the FHLB. At December 31, 2007,
American River Bank could have arranged for up 1o $134,984,000 in secured borrowings from the FHLB. These
borrowings are secured by pledged mortgage foans and investment securities. At December 31, 2007, the Company
had $79,631,000 available under these secured borrowing arrangements. American River Bank also has informal
agreements with various other banks to sell participations in loans, if necessary. The Company serves primarily
a business and professional customer base and, as such, its deposit base is susceptible to economic fluctuarions.
Accordingly, management strives to maintain a balanced position of liquid assets to volatile and cyclical deposits.

Liquidiry is also affected by portfolio maturities and the effect of interest rate fluctuations on the marketability of
both assets and liabilities. The Company can sell any of its unpledged securities held in the available-for-sale category
to meet liquidity needs. These securities are also available to pledge as collateral for borrowings if the need should
arise. American River Bank has established a master repurchase agreement with a correspondent bank to enable such
transactions. American River Bank can also pledge securities to borrow from the FRB and the FHLB.

The principal cash requirements of the Company are for expenses incurred in the support of administration and
operations. For nonbanking functions, the Company is dependent upon the payment of cash dividends from its
subsidiaries to service its commitments. The Company expects that the cash dividends paid by American River Bank
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to the Company will be sufficient to meet this payment schedule, The maturity distribution of cerrificates of deposic
is set forth in Table Thirteen below for the periods presented. These deposits are generally more rate sensitive than
other deposits and, therefore, are more likely to be withdrawn to obtain higher yields elsewhere if available.

Table Thirteen: Certificates of Deposit Maturities

(dollars in thousands)

Three months or less

Cver three months through six menths
QOver six months through twelve months
Qver twelve months

Total

December 31, 2007

Less than $100,000 Over $100,000
$ 14773 $ 45893

8,705 12,638

9,592 8418

7,573 8,774

$ 40,643 $ 75723

Loan and lease demand also affects the Company’s liquidiry position. Table Fourteen below presents the maruricies

of loans and leases for the period indicated.

Table Fourteen: Loan and Lease Maturities (Gross Loans and Leases)

(dollars in thousands)

Commercial
Real estate
Agriculture
Consumer
Leases

Total

December 31, 2007
One year
One Year through Over
or less five years five years Total
§ 47343 5 41,743 $ 16,381 § 105,467
74,459 54,049 144,403 272,913
2,344 5,195 638 8177
930 3,080 6,730 10,750
475 2,860 735 4,070
§ 125551 $ 106,937 $ 168,887 $ 401,375

Loans and leases shown above with maturities greater than one year include $206,091,000 of floating interest rate
loans and $69,733,000 of fixed rate loans and leases.

The carrying amount, maturity distribution and weighted average yield of the Company’s investment securities
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity portfolios are presented in Table Fifteen below. The yields on tax-exempe
obligations have been computed on a tax equivalent basis. Table Fifteen does not include FHLB Stock, which does
not have stated maturity dates or readily available market values. The balance in FHLB Stock at December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $2,800,000, $3,071,000 and $2,608,000, respecuively.
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Table Fifteen: Securities Maturities and Weighted Average Yields

(dollars in thousands)
(Taxable Equivalent Basis)

Available-for-sale securities:
U.S5. Treasury and agency securities
Maturing within 1 year
Maturing after 1 year but within 5 years
State & political subdivisions
Maturing within 1 year
Maturing after 1 year but within 5 years
Maturing after 5 years but within 10 years
Maturing after 10 years
Government sponsored mortgage-
backed securities
Cther
Maturing within 1 year
Maturing after 1 year but within 5 years
Non maturing

Total investment securities

Held-to-maturity securities:
Government sponsored mortgage-
backed securities

Total investment securities

The carrying values of available-for-sale securities include net unrealized gains (losses) of $171,000, ($957,000) and
($1,279,000) ar December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The carrying values of held-to-maturity securities
do nor include unrealized gains or losses, however, the net unrealized gains (losses) a1 December 31, 2007, 2006 and

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Weightad Weighted Weighted
Carrying  Average Carrying  Average Carrying  Average
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount  Yield
3 13,072 377% $ 11,870 3.57% § 21,012 3.37%
3434 384% 16,253 3.78% 28,107 3.70%
2,363 4.15% 4,556 4.00%

11,561 517% 12,625 4.82% 15,426 4.43%
9,810 5.38% 13,789 6.33% 17,386 6.39%
7.377 5.28% 10,254 6.28% 4,294 6.37%

31,066 4.30% 33,236 4.30% 36,326 4.30%

1,003 4.67%
1.014 4.67%
287 4.44% 623 6.12% 624 6.18%
$ 78,970 4.76% $104,209 4.66% $ 124,189 4.40%
$ 34,754 4.69% § 44,031 4.66% $ 45,012 4.37%
$ 34,754 4.69% $ 44,031 4.66% $ 45,012 4.37%

2005 were $101,000, ($311,000) and ($354,000), respectively.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business in order
to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its exposure to fuctuations in interest rates. These financial
instruments consist of commitments to extend credit and leteers of credit. These instruments involve, o varying
degrees, elements of credir and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized on the balance sheer.

As of December 31, 2007, commitments to extend credit and letters of credit were the only financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk. The Company has not entered into any contracts for financial derivative instruments
such as futures, swaps, options or similar instruments. Real estate commitments are generally secured by propercy
with a loan-to-value ratio of 63% to 75%. In addition, the majority of the Company’s commitments have variable
interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party for commitments to extend
credir and letters of credic is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the
same credit policies in making commitments and lettets of credit as it does for loans included on the consolidated
balance sheet. The following financial instruments represent off-balance-sheet credic:

(dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2007 2006
Commitments to extend credit
Revolving lines of credit secured by 1-4 family residences $ 81252 $ 9,144
Cemmercial real estate, construction and land development
commitments secured by real estate 31,881 45,752
Other unused commitments, principally commercial loans 72,500 59,686
§ 112,633 $ 114,582
Letters of credit b3 7.537 % 5,701

Certain financial institutions have elected to use special purpose vehicles (“SPV”) to dispose of problem assets. The
SPV is typically a subsidiary company with an asset and liability structure and legal status that makes its obligations
secure even if the parent corporation goes bankrupt. Under certain circumsrances, these financial institutions may
exclude the problem assets from their reported impaired and non-performing assets. The Company does not use
those vehicles or any other structures to dispose of problem assets.
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Contractual Obligations

The Company leases certain facilities at which it conducts its operations. Future minimum lease commitments
under non-cancelable operating leases are noted in Table Sixteen below. Table Sixteen below presents cerrain of
the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007. Included in the table are amounts payable
under the Company’s Deferred Compensation and Deferred Fees Plans and are listed in the “Other Long-Term
Liabilities...” category. These amounts represented $1,769,000 and are anticipated to be primarily payable at least
five years in the future.

Table Sixteen: Contractua! Cbligations

(dollars in theusands)
Payments due hy period
Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Long-Term Debt $ 3 3 ) 5
Capital Lease Obligations
QOperating Leases 5,075 1,016 1,546 1,149 1,364
Purchase Obligations
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the

Company's Balance Sheet under GAAP 1,769 1,769
Total 3 6,844 3 1,016 £ 1,546 3 1,149 1 3,133

Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No, 157 (“SFAS 1577), “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 applies whenever other standards require {or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value but
does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. In this standard, the FASB clarifies the principle
that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.
In supporr of this principle, SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy thar prioririzes the information used 1o
develop those assumptions. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for financial starements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The provisions should be applied
prospectively, excepr for cerrain specifically identified financial instruments. The Company adopted SFAS 157 on
January 1, 2008 and management does not believe its adoption will have a material impact on the Company's
financial position, results of operations or cash Aows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159 (“SEAS 159”), “The Fair Value Oprion for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 1157, This standard permits an entity
to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. The
entity will report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair vabue option has been elected in earnings
at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option (2} may be applied instrument by instrument, with a few
exceptions, such as investments otherwise accounted for by the equity method, (b) is irrevocable {unless a new
election dare occurs), and (c) is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. The Company
adopted SFAS 159 on January 1, 2008 and management did not elect the fair value oprion for any of its financial

instruments.
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Ln September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the Task Force on Issue No. 06-4 (*EITF 06-04"),
“Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life
Insurance Arrangements”. A question arose when an employer enters into an endorsement split-dollar life insurance
arrangement related to whether the employer should recognize a liabiliry for the future benefits or premiums o be
provided to the employee, EITF 06-04 indicates that an employer should recognize a liability for future benefits and
that a liability for the benefir obligation has not been serded through the purchase of an endorsement type policy.
An entity should apply the provisions of EITF 06-04 either through a change in accounting principle through a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retzined earnings as of the beginning of the year of adoption or a change in accounting
principle through retrospective application to all prior perieds. The provisions of EITF 06-04 are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company adopted the provisions of EITF 06-04 on January 1, 2008
and management derermined that the adoption of EITF 06-04 will not have an impact on the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 {revised 2007), “Business
Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141R”). SFAS Ne. 141(R), among other things, establishes principles and requirements
for how the acquirer in a business combination (i) recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquired business, (i) recognizes and
measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from 2 bargain purchase, and (iii} determines
whar information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the narure and financial effects
of the business combination. The Company is required o adopt SFAS No. 141(R) for all business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. This standard will change the
accounting rrearment for business combinations on a prospective basis.

Other Matters

EFFECTS OF TERRORISM. The terrorist actions on September 11, 2001 and thereafter and the current milieary
conflicts primarily in Afghanisran and [raq have had significant adverse effects upon the United States economy.
Whether the terrorist activicdes in the future and the actions of the United States and its allies in combating terrorism
on a worldwide basis will adversely impact the Company and the extent of such impacr is uncertain. Such economic
deterioration could adversely affect the Company’s future results of operations by, among other marrers, reducing the
demand for loans and other products and services offered by the Company, increasing nonperforming loans and the
amounts teserved for loan and lease losses, and causing a decline in the Company's stock price.
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S Selected Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

=

:g {in thousands, except per share and price range of common stock)

g

=

‘E March 31, Sune 30, September 30, December 31,
O

) 2007

£  Interest income 5 9,464 3 9,498 $ 454 5 9,062
6 Net interest income 3 6,547 3 6,609 % 6,680 b 6,566
= Provision for loan and lease losses $ 121 3 144 13 50 3 135
; Noninterest income 3 641 $ 724 13 665 3 565
E Noninterest expense 3 3,692 3 3,779 $ 3,796 3 3,566
£ income before taxes b 3,375 3 3,410 4 3,503 $ 3,430
g Net income I 2,086 $ 2,088 3 2,152 3 2,142
g Basic earnings per share $ 36 § .36 $ 37 $ .38
& Diluted earnings per share $ 35 § .36 3 37 $ .38
b Cash dividends per share 3 .143 $ 143 5 143 $ 150
% Price range, commen stock § 22.40-25.23 § 22.25-23.33 $ 20.53-22.76 $ 15.80-21.43
:.2.. 2006

% Interest income 3 9,117 % 9,463 3 9,737 $ 9,637
e Net interest income £ 6,792 3 6,699 $ 6,798 i 6,777
% Provision for loan and lease losses 3 84 3 156 3 30 $ 50
g Noninterest income $ 634 $ 597 $ 605 $ 607
c Noninterest expense 5 3,638 3 3,622 3 3,602 S 3,526
® Income before taxes 3 3,704 3 3518 3 377 $ 3,808
v Net income 5 2,243 $ 2,137 $ 2,275 $ 2,407
©

ﬁ Basic earnings per share $ .36 $ 34 i .37 S 41
[ Diluted earnings per share 3 .35 3 .34 3 .37 $ .40
& (Cashdividends per share $ 136 3 136 $ 136 $ 143
§ Price range, common stock 3 19.28-26.30 § 23.36-26.30 % 21.95-24.67 §21.91-24.26
=z

-

.g The earnings per share, cash dividends, and price range have been adjusted for 5% stock dividends in 2007
L and 2006,

=

- 8
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting for the Company (as defined in Rule 13a-15(F) and 15d-15() under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended).

The Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria applicable to the Company as set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizadions of the Treadway Commission in fnrernal Control—Integrated Framework. Based upon such assessment,
management believes that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is
effective based upon those criteria,

Perry-Smith LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company’s consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report has issued a report with respect o the Company’s internal
concrol over financial reporting. The report of Perry-Smich LLP is ser forth immediately below.

D S e

David T. Taber Mitchell A. Derenzo
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
American River Bankshares

We have audited American River Bankshares and subsidiaries (the “Company”) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnzernal Control— Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“the COSQ criteria”). The Company's
management is responsible for maincaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obuaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluaring the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Qur audir also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes thase
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable derail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance thar
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisicion, use, or dispesitien of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limirations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, American River Bankshares and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting QOversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of American River Bankshares and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated March 3, 2008 expressed an

unqualified opinion.
Vw}%«i’ﬁ'{» LLP

Sacramento, California
March 5, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Ametican River Bankshares

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheer of American River Bankshares and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
shareholders’ equiry and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated Anancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require thar we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statemenes. An audir also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimartes made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinjon.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of American River Bankshares and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 20006,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framewark issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated March 5, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
fsSibl, L2

Sacramento, California
March 3, 2008

2007 Annuat Report American River Bankshares

w4 Buunoly Jugnd pasaistiay wapuadapuy J0 HodaY SSURIPISHNS PUR SDIBLSHUBE 1aniy UBDLISWY

41




American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheet

42

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands)

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivalents

Interest-bearing deposits in banks
Investment securities (Note 4):
Available for sale, at fair value
Held to maturity, at amortized <ost
Loans and leases, less allowance for loan and lease losses of
$5,883 in 2007 and $5,874 in 2006 (Notes 5, 11 and 16)
Premises and equipment, net (Note 6)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Accounts receivable servicing receivables, net (Note 7)
Goodwill {Note 3)
Intangible assets {(Note 3)
Accrued interest receivable and other assets (Notes 10 and 15)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Deposits;
Noninterest-bearing
Interest bearing (Note 8)

Total deposits

Shert-term borrowings {Note 9)
Long-term borrowings (Note 9)
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities {Nete 15)

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Shareholders’ equity (Notes 12 and 13}

Common stock—ne par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
outstanding—35,590,277 shares in 2007 and 5,657,346 shares in 2006

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (Notes 4 and 17)

Total shareholders’ equity

2007 2006
$ 16,245 § 25,352
1,700
17.945 25,352
4,951 4,951
78,970 104,209
34,754 44,031
394,975 382,993
1,983 1,846
2,800 3,071
1,665 2,581
16,321 16,321
1,193 1,501
18,127 17,147
4 573,685 S 604,003
$ 132,666 $ 160,574
322,979 333,301
455,645 493,875
51,603 37,270
5,000
6,464 5,487
513,712 541,632
45,668 48,246
14,204 14,680
101 (565)
59,973 62,371
$ 573,685 $ 604,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidaced financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income _
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2007 2006 2005
Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans and leases $ 31,508 $ 31,081 $ 26536
Interest on Federal funds scld 34 19 90
Interest on deposits in banks 271 241 188
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
Taxable 4,544 5,545 5,436
Exempt from Federal income taxes 1,095 1,034 931
Dividends 26 34 32
Total interest income 37,478 37,954 33,213
Interest expense:
Interest an deposits (Note 8) 9,560 8,677 5,646
Interest an borrowings (Note 9) 1,516 2,211 1,105
Total interest expense 11,076 10,888 6,751
Net interest income 26,402 27,066 26,462
Provision for loan and lease losses (Note 5) 450 320 322
Met interest income after provision for loan
and lease losses 25,952 26,746 26,140
Noninterest income:
Service charges 743 783 672
Gain on sale of investment securities (Note 4} 1 1 48
Other income {Note 14) 1,845 1,659 1,609
Total noninterest income 2,599 2,443 2,329
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits (Notes 5 and 15} 8,396 7,816 6,958
Occupancy (Notes 6 and 11) 1,398 1,384 1,229
Furniture and equipment (Notes 6 and 11) 691 812 918
Other expense (Notes 3 and 14} 4,348 4,376 4,388
Total noninierest expense 14,833 14,388 13,493
Total noninterest expense 14,833 14,388 13,493
Income before provision for income taxes 13,7118 14,801 14,976
Provision for income taxes (Note 10) 5.240 5,739 5,792
Net income $ 8478 $ 9,062 $ 5,184
Basic earnings per share (Note 12) $ 147 $ 1.49 $ 1.48
Diluted earnings per share (Note 12) s 1.46 $ 1.46 3 1.45
Cash dividends per share of issued and outstanding comman
stock, adjusted for stock dividends $ 0.58 13 0.55 3 0.49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Other
Common Stock Comprehensive Total Total
Retained Income (Loss)  Shareholders’ Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings (Net of Taxes) Equity Income
Balance, January 1, 2005 5,314,732 § 42,557 § 15,878 1 555 $ 58,990

Comprehensive income (Note 17):
Net income 9,184 9,184 $ 9,184
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Net change in unrealized gains on

available-forsale investment securities {1,312) (1,312) (1,312)
Total comprehensive income i 7872
Cash dividend 13.49 per share} {3,012 (3.012)
Fractional shares redeemed {1 (32} (32)
5% stock dividend 266,801 6,021 {6,021}
Stock options exercised 113,309 945 945
Retirement of common stock (Note 12) (90,362) (2,017) (2,017)
Balance, December 31, 2005 5,604,479 47,474 16,02% {757) 62,746

Cumulative effect of adopting Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108, net of taxes {Note 2) (214) (214)

Comprehensive income (Note 17):
Net income 9,062 9,062 § 9062
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Net change in unrealized losses on

available-for-sale investment securities (Note 4) 192 192 192
Total camprehensive income $ 9254
Cash dividend ($.55 per share) (3,332) {3.332)
Fractional shares redeemed for stock dividend {21} 21
5% stock dividend 268,336 6,834 (6,834)
Stack options exercised 43,162 441 441
Stock option compensation (Note 12) 221 221
Retirement of common stock (Note 12) {258,641} (6,724) (6,724)
Balance, Decemnber 31, 2006 5,657,346 48,246 14,690 {565) 62,371

Comprehensive income (Note 17):
Net income 8,478 8,478 $ 8478
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

det change in unreatized gains on

available-for-sale investment securities {Note 4) 666 666 666
Total comprehensive income 3 9,144
Cash dividend {$.58 per share} (3,319} (3,319)
Fractional shares redeemed for stock dividend 6 9 9
5% stack dividend 265,683 5.645 {5.645)
Stock options exercised 54,569 679 679
Stock option compensation (Note 12) 30 30
Retirement of common stock {Note 12) (387,315} (9,194) (9,194)
Balance, December 31, 2007 5,590,277 $ 45,668 $ 14,204 b3 0l § 59,973

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (doflars in thousands)

2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 8478 $ 9062 $ 9,184
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

o
3
o
=
~
o
3
=
<
m
-
=
W
2
=
il
o
Provision for Inan and lease losses 450 320 322 %
Decrease in deferred loan and lease origination fees, net (188) 7 {173) i
Depreciation and amortization 840 951 1,014 “3’
Amortization of investment security premiums and discounts, net 254 659 1,099 =3
Provision for accounts receivable servicing receivable "g?
allowance for losses )] 1 35 g
Gain on sale of investment securities (1) (1 (48) 0.
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies (404} (192) {178) 93‘
Provision for deferred income taxes (240} {1,003} (422) a2
Stock option compensation expense 301 221 ra
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options {236) {14%) (469} 9
{Increase) decrease in accrued interest 3
receivable and other assets (501) 857 648 o
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest o
payable and other lizbilities 986 {525} (12,604) a
. : . 7]
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 9,726 10,204 (1,592) =
—+
Cash flows from investing activities: s
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 6,506 3,259 6,964 o
Proceeds from called available-for-sale investment securities 1,170 400 280 4
Praceeds from matured available-for-sale investment securities 17,485 21,150 20,180 S,
Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities (7,.275) {41,596} Q
Purchases of held-to-maturity investment securities {967) (9,489) 116,901} ‘5—
Proceeds from principal repayments for available-for-sale -
mortgage-backed securities 2,71 2,275 3,411 e}
Proceeds from principal repayments for held-to-maturity g
mortgage-backed securities 8,496 10,305 12,495
Net (increase) decrease in interest-bearing deposits in banks (107) 1,095%
Net increase in loans and leases {12,302) {17,733) {13,242)
Net decrease {increase) in accounts receivable
servicing receivables 918 (592} 374
Purchases of equipment (672) (379) (886)
Purchase of single premium life insurance policies (4,432)
Net decrease (increase) in FHLB stock 271 (463) {450)
Net cash pravided by (used in} investing activities 23,616 (3,081) (28,276)
(Conzinued}
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§¥  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows covmueo

[*]

e For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in theusands)
5

o

J
HC-) 2007 2006 2005
i< Cash flows érom financing activities:

E Net {decrease) increase in demand, interest-bearing and

3 savings deposits $ (22,757) $ (19,768) $ 12,722
E Net {decrease) increase in time deposits (15,463) 12,937 12,597
i {Decrease) increase in long-term borrowings {5,000) 730 {5,562)
B Increase {decrease) in short-term borrowings 14,333 {2,116} 14,829
B Exercise of stock options 443 292 476
g Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 236 149 469
8 Cash paid to repurchase commaon stock {9,194) {6,724) 2.017)
5 Payment of cash dividends (3,328) (3,325) (2,754)
W Cash paid for fractional shares (9) (21) (32}
wy

QU

- Net cash {used in} provided by financing activities (40,749) {17.846) 30,828
©

) {Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,407 {10,723) 960
A

s

-.131 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25,352 36,075 35,115
T Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 17,945 § 257352 § 36,075
k]

§ Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

E Cash paid during the year for:

) Interest expense £ 11,197 £ 10,815 $ 6,509
% Income taxes $ 5,403 |3 6,665 ) 5,990
[+

o Non-cash investing activities:

=2 Net change in unrealized gain {loss) on

né available-for-sale investment securities % 1,128 1 322 $  (2,159)
D

E Non-cash financing activities:

] Dividends declared and unpaid $ 839 $ 848 b3 841
E Adjustments to goodwill $ 238

Cumulative effect of adopting $AB 108, net of taxes 3 214
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options $ 236 i 149 $ 469

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 The Business of the Company

American River Bankshares (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of California in 1995
under the name of American River Holdings and changed its name in 2004 (o0 American River Bankshares. As a bank
holding company, the Company is authorized to engage in the activities permitted under the Bank Holding Company
Actof 1956, as amended, and regulations thereunder. As a community oriented bank holding company, the principal
communities served are locared in Sacramento, Placer, Yolo, El Dorado, Amador, and Sonoma counties.

The Company owns 1009 of the issued and outstanding common shares of its banking subsidiary, American River
Bank ("ARB”). ARB was incorporated in 1983. ARB accepts checking and savings deposits, offers money market
deposit accounts and certificates of deposit, makes secured and unsecured commercial, secured real estate, and
other installment and term loans and offers other customary banking services. ARB operates six banking offices
in Sacramento and Placer countdes, three banking offices in Sonoma County under the name North Coast Bank,
a division of ARB, and three banking offices in Amador County under the name Bank of Amador ("BNKA™), a
division of ARB.

The Bank of Amador located in Jackson, California was merged with and into ARB in December 2004 and now
operates as Bank of Amador, a division of ARB. The merger transaction was accounted under the purchase method of
accounting and accordingly the results of their operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements
since the date of acquisition.

The Company also owns one inactive subsidiary, American River Financial.

The deposits of ARB are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporarion {the *FDIC”} up to applicable legal
limits. ARB does not offer trust services or international banking services and does not plan to do so in the near
future.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries conform with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and prevailing practices within the financial services industry.

Reclassifications
Cerrain reclassifications have been made to prior years” balances to conform to classifications used in 2007.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
material intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminared in consclidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepred
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimares and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash fows, cash and due from banks and Federal funds sold are considered to be
cash equivalents. Generally, Federal funds are sold for one-day periods.

Investment Securities
Investments are classified into the following categories:

* Available-for-sate securities, reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and
reported, net of taxes, as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders™ equity.

* Held-to-macurity securities, which management has the positive intent and ability to hold to marurity, reported at
amortized cost, adjusted for the accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments ac the time of purchase and may only
change the classification in certain limited circumstances. All transfers between categories are accounted for ac fair
value. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company did not have any trading securiries.

Gains or lasses on the sale of investment securities are compured on the specific identification method. Interest earned
on investment securities is reported in interest income, net of applicable adjustments for aceretion of discounts and
amottization of premiums.

[nvestment securities are evaluated for impairment on at least a quarterly basis and more frequently when econemic or
marker conditions warrant such an evaluation to determine whether a decline in their value is other than temperary.
Management utilizes criteria such as the magnitude and duration of the decline and the intent and ability of the
Company to retain its invesement in the securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery
in fair value, in addition to the reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss in value is other than
temporary. The term “other than temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, bur indicates
thac the prospects for a near-term recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or thar there is a lack of evidence to
support a realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value is
determined to be other than temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings
is recognized.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank (*FHLB™) stock are carried ar cost and are redeemable at par with certain
restrictions. Investments in FHLB stock are necessary to participate in FHLB programs.

Loans and Leases

Loans and leases are reported at the principal amounts outstanding, adjusted for unearned income, deferred loan
origination fees and costs, purchase premiums and discounts, write-downs and the allowance for loan and lease losses.
Loan and lease origination fees, net of certain deferred origination costs, and purchase premiums and discounts are
recognized as an adjustment to the yield of the related loans and leases.

The acerual of interest on loans and leases is discontinued when, in the opinion of management, there is an indication
thar the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. Upon such discontinuance, all unpaid accrued
interest is reversed against current income unless the loan or lease is well secured and in the process of collection.
Interest received on nonaccrual loans and leases is either applied against principal or reported as interest income,
according to management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal. Generally, loans and leases are restored to

\
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

accrual status when the obligation is brought current and has performed in accordance with the contracrual terms for
a reasonable period of time and the ultimate collectibilicy of the total contracrual principal and interest is no longer
in doubt.

Direct financing leases are carried net of unearned income. Income from leases is recognized by a method that
approximates a level yield on the outstanding net investment in the lease._

Loan Sales and Servicing

Included in the loan and lease portfolio are Small Business Administration (“SBA”) loans and Farmer Mac guaranteed
loans that may be sold in the secondary market. Ar the time the loan is sold, the related right to service the loan is
either retained, with the Company earning future servicing income, or released in exchange for a one-time servicing-
released premium. A portion of this premium may be required to be refunded if the borrower defaults or the loan
prepays within ninety days of the sertlement date. There were no sales of loans subject to these recourse provisions
at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Loans subsequently wransferred to the loan portfolio are transferred at the
lower of cast or marker value at the date of transfer. Any difference berween the carrying amount of the loan and its
outstanding principal balance is recognized as an adjustment to yield by the interest method. There were no loans
held for sale at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

SBA and Farmer Mac loans with unpaid balances of $847,000 and $1,218,000 were being serviced for others as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company also serviced loans that are participared with other
financial institutions toraling $7,797,000 and $11,642,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Servicing rights acquired through 1} a purchase or 2) the origination of loans which are sold or securitized with
servicing rights retained are recognized as separate assets or liabilities. Servicing assets or liabilities are recorded at the
difference between the contractual servicing fees and adequate compensation for performing the servicing, and are
subsequendy amortized in proportion to and over the period of the related net servicing income or expense. Servicing
assets are periodically evaluated for impairment. Servicing assets were not considered material for disclosure purposes
at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses is maintained to provide for probable losses related w impaired loans
and leases and other probable losses on loans and leases identified by management as doubtful, substandard and
special mention, as well as losses that can be expected to occur in the normal course of business related to currently
performing loans and leases. The determination of the allowance is based on estimates made by management, to
include consideration of the character of the loan and lease portfolio including concentrations, types of lending,
specifically identified problem loans and leases, inherent risk of loss in the partfolio taken as a whole and economic
conditions in the Company’s service areas.

The methodology for evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses has two basic elemencs: firss,
the identification of impaired loans and the measurement of impairment for each individual loan identified; and
second, 2 method for estimating a general allowance for loan and lease losses.

Aloan or lease is considered impaired when it is probable that all contractual principal and interest payments due will
not be cellecred in accordance with the terms of the loan or lease agreement. Impairment on individually identified
loans or leases that are not collateral dependent is measured based on the present value of expecred future cash flows
discounted at each loan or lease’s original effective interest rate. For loans chat are collateral dependent, impairment
is measured based on the fair value of the collatcral less estimated selling costs.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

In estimating the general allowance for loan and lease losses, the balance of the loan portfolio is grouped into
segments that have common characteristics, such as loan type, collateral type or risk rating. Loans typically segregated
by risk rating are those that have been assigned ratings (using regulatory definitions) of special mention, substandard
and doubtful. Loans graded loss are generally charged off immediately.

For each general allowance portfolio segment, loss factors are applied to calculate the required allowance. These loss
factors are based upon historical loss rates adjusted for qualitative factors representing other significant facrors affecting
loan portfolio including economic factors, credit policy and underwriting, management and staff effectiveness, trends
in delinquencies and losses, and concentrations.

The Company's Loan Committee reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses at least quarterly, to
include consideration of the relarive risks in the portfolio and current economic conditions, The allowance is adjusted
based on that review if, in the judgment of the Loan Commitree and management, changes are warranted.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan and lease losses which is charged to expense. Additions
to the allowance are expected to maintain the adequacy of the rotal allowance after credit losses and loan and lease
growth. Although management believes the allowance for loan and lease losses to be adequate, ultimate losses may
vary from their estimates. In addirion, the FDIC and California Department of Financial Institutions, as an integral
part of their examination process, review the allowance for loan and lease losses. These agencies may require additions
to the allowance for loan and lease losses based on their judgment about information available at the time of their
examinations.

Other Real Estate

Other real estate includes real estate acquired in full or partial settlement of loan obligations. When property is
acquired, any excess of the recorded investment in the loan balance and accrued interest income over the estimated
fair market value of the property less estimated selling costs is charged against the allowance for loan and lease
losses. A valuation allowance for losses on other real estate is maintained to provide for temporary declines in
value. The allowance is established through a provision for losses on other real estate which is included in other
expenses. Subsequent gains or losses on sales or writedowns resulting from permanent impairments are recorded
in other income or expense as incurred. There was $61,000 in other real estate at December 31, 2007 and none at
December 31, 2006.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. The useful life of the building and improvements is forty years. The
useful lives of furniture, fixtures and equipment are estimated to be three to ten years. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the life of the asset or the term of the related lease, whichever is shorter. When assers are sold or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and retated accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts,
and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged
to expense as incurred. Impairment of long-lived assets is evaluated by management based upon an event or changes
in circumstances surrounding the underlying assets which indicate long-lived assets may be impaired.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Goodwill and Iniangible Assets

Business combinations involving the Company’s acquisition of equity interests or ner assets of another enterprise
or the assumption of net liabilities in 2n acquisition of branches constituting a business may give rise to goodwill.
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the ner of the amounts assigned to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in transactions accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The value
of goodwill is ultimately derived from the Company's ability to generate net earnings after the acquisition and is not
deductible for tax purposes. A decline in net ezrnings could be indicative of a decline in the fair value of goodwill and
result in impairment. For that reason, goadwill is assessed for impairment at least annually.

Intangible assets are comprised of core deposit intangibles which represent the estimated fair value of the long-term
deposit relationships thar were assumed when the Company acquired Bank of Amador in December 2004. Core
deposit intangibles are amortized using a method that approximates the expected run-off of the deposit base, which,
in this case, is eight years. Management evaluates the recoverability and remaining useful life annually to determine
whether events or circumstances warrant a revision to the intangible zssets or the remaining amortization period.

Income Taxes
The Company files its income taxes on a consolidated basis with its subsidiaries. The allocation of income tax expense
{benefit) represents each entity’s proportionate share of the consolidated provision for income taxes.

The Company accounts for income taxes using the balance sheet method, under which deferred rax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences between the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws
and rates on the date of enactment. On the consolidated balance sheet, net deferred tax assets are included in accrued
interest receivable and other assets.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (‘FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting
Jor Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement standard for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of an income tax position taken or expected 1o be taken in a tax return. In addition,
FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transirion.

The provisions of FIN 48 have been applied to all tax positions of the Company as of January 1, 2007. Only tax
positions that met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold on January 1, 2007 were recognized or continue
to be recognized upon adoption. The Company previously recognized income tax positions based on management’s
estimare of whether it was reasonably possible that z liability had been incurred for unrecognized income tax benefits
by applying FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a marerial
impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash fows.

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by
the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncerrainty about the merits of the position raken or the amount of
the position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the Anancial statements
in the peried during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not thar
the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any.
Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of rax benefir that is more than 50 percent likely of
being realized upon serdlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with rax
positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized rax
benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to
the raxing authorities upon examination.

Interest expense and penalties associated with unrecognized rax benehits are classified as income tax expense in the
consolidated statement of income.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is reported in addition to net income for all periods presented. Comprehensive income is «
more inclusive financial reporting merhodology that includes disclosure of other comprehensive income (loss} that
historically has not been recognized in the calculation of net income. Unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s
available-for-sale investment securities are included in other comprehensive income (loss), adjusted for realized
gains or losses included in net income. Total comprehensive income and the components of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equicy.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”}, which excludes dilution, is computed by dividing income available to commeoen
shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the
potential dilution thar could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock, such as stock options, result
in the issuance of common stock which shares in the earnings of the Company. The treasury stock method has been
applied to determine the dilutive effect of stock options in computing diluted EPS. EPS is retroacrively adjusted for
stock splits and stock dividends for all periods presented.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2007, the Company has two stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully in
Note 12. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of Accounting Principles Board ("APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and
related Interprerations, as permirced by FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and
FASB Swtement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure. No stock-based
employee compensation cost was recognized for options granted for the year ended December 31, 2005 in the
consolidated staternent of income, as all options granted under the plans had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair
value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospective
cransition methad. Under thar transition method, compensation cost recognized in fiscal years 2007 and 2006
includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments vesting after January 1, 2006 that were granted prior to,
but not yer vested as of January 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provisions of Srarement No. 123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments vesting after January 1,
2006 that were granted subsequenc to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of Statement No. 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated and there was no one-
time effect resulting from the adoprion of FASB Statement No. 123(R). Compensation expense, net of related tax
benefits, recorded in 2007 and 2006 as a result of applying this accounting standard totated $251,000 and $184,000,
or $.04 and $.03 per diluted share, respectively. Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting peried on a
straight line accounting basis.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

The Company followed the alternative transition methed allowed under FASB 123R-3, Transition Election Related
to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards, which provides for a simplified method to establish the
beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool”) related to the tax effects of employee share-
based compensation.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of FASB Starement No. 123 to stock-based compensation for che year ended December
31, 2005. Pro forma adjustments to the Company’s consolidated ner income and earnings per share are disclosed
during the years in which the options become vested (dollars in thousands, excepr per share data).

Net income, as reported 3 9,184
Oeduct: Total stock-based compensation

expense determined under the fair value

based methed for all awards, net of

related tax effects (88)
Pro farma net income $ 9,09
Basic earnings per share—as reported $ 1.48
Basic earnings per share—pro forma 3 1.46
Diluted earnings per share—as reported 3 1.45
Diluted earnings per share—pro forma $ 1.45

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton based option
valuation madel that uses the assumptions noted in the following rable. Because Black-Scholes-Merton based option
valuation models incorporate ranges of assumptions for inputs, those ranges are disclosed. Expected volarilities are
based on historical volarility of the Company’s stock and other factors. The Company uses historical dara 1o estimare
option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is
derived from guidance provided in the Securities and Exchange Commissions’ Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 and
represents the pertod of time that options granted are expected 1o be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within
the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect ac the time of granc.

2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield 2.33% 2.16% 227% 10 2.71%
Expected volatility 21.6% 29.6% 303% t0 31.4%
Risk-free interest rate 4.68% 4.70% 3.96% to 4.08%
Expected aptian life in years 7 7 7
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year b 5.06 £ 7.94 3 5.63
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

The following is a summary of stock option information as of or for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005:

(dollars in thousands)
2007 2006 2005

Total intrinsic value of opticns exercised $ 832 L S $ 2,062
Aggregate cash received for option exercises § 444 £ 292 $ 476
Total fair value of options vested § 263 $ 154
Total compensation cost 3 30 $ 2
Tax benefit recognized 3 50 5 37
Net compensation cost § 251 $ 184
Total compensation cost for nonvested

awards not yet recognized $ 894 $ 828
Weighted average years 1o be recognized 22 2.4

Cumulative Effect of Adopting Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin {"SAB”)
No. 108 Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in Curvent Year Financial
Statements, which provides interpretive guidance on how registrants should quantify financial statement misstatements.
Under SAB 108 registrants are required to consider both a “rollover” method which focuses primarily on the income
statement impact of misstatements and the “iron curtain” method which focuses primarily on the balance sheer
impact of misstatements. The transition provisions of SAB 108 permit a registrant to adjust retained earnings for the
cumulative effect of immarerial errors relating to prior years. The Company was required 1o adopr SAB 108 in the
fourth quarter of 2006,

Historically, the Company evaluated uncorrected differences utilizing the rollover approach. Management believes
that the impact of errors related to unrecorded compensated absences was immaterial to prior fiscal years under
the rollover method. Under SAB 108 management must assess materiality using both the rollover method and the
iron-curtain method. Under the iron-curtain method, the cumulative effect of unrecorded compensated absences
was material to the Company’s 2006 financial statements and, therefore, management recorded an adjustment to
decrease the opening 2006 retained earnings balance in the amount of $214,000, increase other liabilides in the
amount of $350,000 and increase deferred rax assets by $136,000 in accordance with the implementation guidance
in SAB 108.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Impact of New Financial Accounting Standards

Fair value Measurements In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157 (SFAS 157), Fair Value
Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies whenever other standards require (or permit} assets or liabilities
to be measured at fair value but does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances, In this standard,
the FASB clarifies the principle cthar fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. In support of this principle, SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years.
The provisions should be applied prospectively, excepr for certain specifically identified financial instruments. The
Company adopred SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008 and management does not believe its adoption will have a material
impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operarions or cash flows.

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [n February 2007, the FASB issued Statement
No. 159 (SFAS 159), The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 115, This standard permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value ar specified election dates. The entity will report unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value oprion
{a) may be applied inscrument by instrument, with a few exceptions, such as investments otherwise accounted for by
the equity method, (b) is irrevocable (unless a new clection date occurs), and {c) is applied only to entire instruments
and not to portions of instruments. The Company adopted SFAS 159 on January 1, 2008 and management did not
elect the fair value option for any of its financial instruments.

Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life
Insurance Arrangements In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the Task Force on
Issue No. 06-4 (EI'TF 06-04), Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement
Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements. A question arose when an employer enters into an endorsement split-dollar
life insurance arrangement related 1o whether the employer should recognize a liability for the furure benefits or
premiums to be provided to the employee. EITF 06-04 indicates that an employer should recognize a liabiliry
for future benefits and thar a liability for the benefit obligation has not been settled through the purchase of an
endorsement type policy. An entity should apply the provisions of EITF 06-04 either through a change in accounting
principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the year of adoprion or a
change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. The provisions of EITF 06-04
are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, The Company adopted the provisions of EITF 06-04
on January 1, 2008 and management determined thar the adoption of EITF 06-04 will not have an impacr on the
financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Accounting for Business Combinations In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141 (revised 2007), Busimess Combinations {“SFAS No. 141R”). SFAS No. 141(R), among other
things, establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer in a business combinartion (i) recognizes and
measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling
interest in the acquired business, (ii) recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or
a gain from a bargain purchase, and (i) determines what information 10 disclose to enable users of the financial
statements o evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The Company is required to
adopt SFAS No. 141(R) for all business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2009,
Earlier adoption is prohibited. This standard will change the accounting treatment for business combinations on a
prospective basis.

Note 3 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, goodwill totaled $16,321,000. Goodwill is evaluated annually for impairment
under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers, and management determined that no
impairment recognirion was required for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, Goodwill is not
deductible for tax purposes.

Other intangible assets are comprised of core deposit intangibles totaling $1,193,000 and $1,501,000 at December
31, 2007 and 2006, respecrively. Amortization included in other expense totaled $308,000, $330,000 and $352,000
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The remaining balance will be amortized over
4.9 years. Amortization expense for the next five years Is estimared as follows (dollars in thousands}:

Year Ending December 31,

2008 § 286
200% § 264
2010 § 242
2011 § 219
2012 3 182
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Note 4 investment Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of

the following (dollars in thousands):

Available-for-5ale 2007
Grass Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Debt securities:

U.5. Government agencies $ 16,539 $ 8 13 (41) $ 16,506

Martgage-backed securities 31,174 13 (121) 31,066
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 30,758 452 (99} 31,111

Equity securities: ’
Corporate stock 328 24 (65) 287
$ 78,799 $ 457 $ (326) $ 78.970
2006
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Debt securities:

U.5. Government agencies % 28,532 3 409 ) 28,123

Mortgage-backed securities 33,930 $ g (703 33,236
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 41,115 407 (298) 41,224

Corporate debt securities 1,005 (2) 1,003

Equity securities:
Corporate stock 584 50 {11 623
§ 105,166 § 466 $  (1,423) $ 104,209

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale investment securities totaling $171,000 were recorded, net of $70,000
in rax liabilities, as accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2007.
Proceeds and gross realized gains from the sale of available-for-sale investment securities for the year ended December
31, 2007 toraled $4,726,000 and $25,000, respectively. There were no transfers of available-for-sale investment
securities during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities totaling $957,000 were recorded, net of $392,000 in
tax benefits, as accumulated other comprehensive loss within shareholders’ equity 2t December 31, 2006, Proceeds
and gross realized gains from the sale of available-for-sale investment securities for the year ended December 31,
2006 totaled $3,259,000 and $1,000, respectively. There were no transfers of available-for-sale investment securities
during the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Note 4 Investment Securities, continued

Proceeds and gross realized gains from the sale of available-for-sale investment securities for the year ended December

31, 2005 toraled $6,964,000 and $48,000, respectively.

Held-to-Maturity 2007
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 34,754 199 $ (98) § 34,855
2006
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 44,03 $ 69 3 (380) $ 43,720

Proceeds and gross realized losses from the sale of held-to-marurity investment securities for the year ended December
31, 2007 totaled $1,780,000 and $14,000, respectively. There were no sales of held-to-maturity investment securities
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and no transfers of held-to-maturity investment securities for the

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2007 by contractual marurity

are shown below (dollars in thousands).

Available for Sale

Held-to-Maturity

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value Loss Fair Value
Within ane year $ 15,475 $ 15436
After one year through five years 14,939 14,995
After five years through ten years 9,556 9,809
After ten years 7,327 7,377
47,297 47,617

Investment securities not due
at a single maturity date:

Mortgage-backed securities 31,174 31,066 $ 34754 § 34,855
Corporate stock 328 287

$ 78,799 $ 78970 $ 34,754 $ 34,855
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Note 4 Investment Securities, continued

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right ro
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Investment securities with amorrized costs totaling $64,007,000 and $62,347,000 and estimared fair values toraling
$63,926,000 and $61,240,000 were pledged to secure treasury tax and loan accounts, State Treasury funds on
deposit, public agency and bankrupecy trustee deposits and borrowing arrangements (see Note 9) at December 31,

2007 and 2006, respectively.

Investment securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized and classified accarding
to the duration of the loss period as follows (doflars in thousands)

Available-for-Sale
Debt securities:
U.S. Government agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Cbligations of states and
political subdivisions
Corporate stock

Held-to-Maturity
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed securities

Available-for-Sale

Debt securities:
U.S. Government agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions

Corporate debt securities
Corporate stock

Held-to-Maturity
Debt securities:
Mortgage-backed securities

2007
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

$ 1,484 362

$ 11,552 $ 4y

30,136 21}
6,944 (37}
186 (63)

$ 11552 % @

30,136 (21
8,428 ©3)
186 5)

$ 1,484 $  (62)

3 48.818 § (264

§ 50,302 3 (626

$ 1,192 $ (2)

$ 14,838 $  (96)

$ 16030 3§ &

2006
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

$ 7285 (50

§ 28123 8 (409)

32,150 (703)
16,650 (247)
1,003 2)
239 {12)

$ 28123 % (409)

32,150 {703}
23,935 (297)
1,003 (2)
239 (12)

3 7,285 3 {50

3 78,165 % (1,373)

$ 85450 § (1,423)

$ 2,250 $

$ 29672 3 (373)

$ 31,922 § (380)
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Note 4 Investment Securities, continued

At December 31, 2007, the unrealized loss on the Company’s investments in U.S. Government agencies, mortgage-
backed securities and obligations of states and political sub-divisions is primarily driven by interest rates. Because the
decline in market value is ateributable to a change in interest rates and not credir quality, and because the Company
has the ability and intent to hold these investments until recovery of fair value, which may be maturiry, management
does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

At December 31, 2007, the unrealized loss on the Company’s investments in corporate stock is related o a single
investment that is in a loss position of $65,000 that has been evaluated by management for other-than-temporary
impairment. Management does not consider this investment to be other-than—temporarily impaired.

Note 5 Loans and Leases

Qutstanding loans and leases are summarized as follows {deflars in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006

Real estate—commercial $ 191,774 $ 175,643
Real estate—construction 66,022 90,314
Real estate—multi-famity 5.830 3,618
Real estate—residential 9,285 8,689
Commercial 105,467 85,859
Lease financing receivable 4,070 6,375
Agriculture 8177 7,362
Consumer 10,750 11,712
401,375 389,572

Deferred loan and lease origination fees, net (517} (705)
Allowance for loan and lease losses (5,883} {5,874)
$ 394,975 $ 382,993

Certain loans are pledged as collateral for available borrowings with the FHLB. Pledged loans totaled $171,709,000
and $201,830,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respecrively {see Note 9).

American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The components of the Company's leases receivable are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands).

December 3%,

2007 2006

Future lease payments receivable 3 4,388 13 6,883
Residual interasts 75 226
Unearned income {393} (734}
Net lease financing receivable 3 4,070 % 6,375
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Note 5 Loans and Leases, continued

Future lease payments receivable are as follows (doflars in thousands).

Year Ending December 31,

2008 $ 2,289
2005 1.12
2010 532
2011 327
2012 214
Thereafter 14
Total lease payments receivable $ 4,388

Changes in the allowance for loan and lease losses wete as follows (dellars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of year t 5874 $ 5,679 3 5,496
Provision charged to operations 450 320 322
Losses charged to allowance (548) {150) {206}
Recoveries 107 25 67
Balance, end of year § 5883 $ 5.874 $ 5,679

The recorded investment in loans and leases that were considered to be impaired totaled $6,637,000 at December
31, 2007 and had a related valuation allowance of $764,000. The average recorded investment in impaired loans
and leases during 2007 was approximately $407,000. There were no loans or leases considered to be impaired ar
December 31, 2006.

Non-accrual loans and leases toraled approximately $6,985,000 and $63,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Loans and leases past due 90 days or more and still accruing at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
$455,000 and $13,000, respectively. Interest income on non-accrual loans is generally recognized on a cash basis and
was not significant for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Interest foregone on non-accrual loans
totaled $252,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, Interest foregone on non-accrual loans for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was not significant.

Salaries and employee benehts toraling $1,030,000, $1,183,000 and $1,395,000 have been deferred as loan and lease
origination costs for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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Note 6 Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment consisted of the following (dellars in thousands).

December 31,

2007 2006
Land 4 206 3 206
Building and improvements 1,084 873
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6,518 6,267
Leasehold improvements 1,293 1,141
9,111 8,487
Less accurnulated depreciation
and amartization (7.128) (6,641}
] 1,983 $ 1,846

Depreciation and amortization included in occupancy and furniture and equipment expense totaled $535,000,
$623,000 and $672,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 7 Accounts Receivable Servicing Receivables

The Company purchases existing accounts receivable on a discounted basis from selected merchants and assumes
the related billing and collecrion responsibilities on a recourse basis. Accounts receivable servicing fees included in
other income totaled $244,000, $372,000 and $356,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The valuation allowance for these receivables is not significanc.

Note 8 Interest-Bearing Deposits

Interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006

Savings $ 35,639 $ 36,893
Money market 127,397 122,765
NOW accounts 43,577 41,814
Time, $100,000 or more 75,723 82,569
Other time 40,643 49,260
§ 322,979 § 333,301
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Note 8 Interest-Bearing Deposits, continued

Aggregate annual maturities of time deposits are as follows (dollars in thousands)}

Year Ending December 31,

2008 4 100,009
2009 7,749
2010 3,095
201 4,886
2012 596
Thereafter 21

$ 116,366

Interest expense recognized on interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following (doflars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Savings 3 546 $ 242 $ 150
Money market 3,668 3,074 2,164
NOW accounts 113 130 83
Time, $100,000 or more 3,167 3,092 1.620
Qther time 2,066 2,139 1,629
$ 9,560 3 8,677 $ 5.646

Note 9 Borrowing Arrangements

The Company has a total of $52,000,000 in unsecured short-rerm borrowing arrangements to purchase Federal funds
with four of its correspondent banks. There were no advances under the borrowing arrangements as of December

31, 2007 and 2006.

In addition, the Company has a line of credit available with the Federal Home Loan Bank which is secured by
pledged mortgage loans (see Note 5) and investment securities (see Note 4). Borrowings may include overnight
advances as well as loans with a term of up o thirty years. Advances wmaling $51,603,000 were outstanding from
the Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2007, bearing fixed interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 5.21% and
maturing between January 2, 2008 and October 30, 2008. Advances totaling $42,270,000 were outstanding from
the Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2006, bearing fixed intetest rates ranging from 2.66% to 6.13% and
marturing berween January 3, 2007 and April 7, 2008. Amounts available under the borrowing arrangement with the
Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2007 and 2006 totaled $79,631,000 and $87,091,000, respectively.
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Note 9 Borrowing Arrangements, continued

The following table summarizes these borrowings (doflers in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
Shart-term portion of borrowings $ 51,603 3.61% § 37270 5.08%
Long-term horrowings 5,000 4.92%
3 51,603 361% $ 42,270 5.06%

The Company has also been issued $3,750,000 in letters of credit by the Federal Home Lean Bank which have been
pledged 1o secure Local Agency Deposits. The letters of credit act as a guarantee of payment to certain third parties in
accordance with specified terms and conditions. The letters of credic were not drawn upon in 2007 and management

does not expecr to draw upon these lines in the furure.

Note 10 Income Taxes

The provision for income raxes for the years ended Diecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 consisted of the following

(dollars in thousands):
Federal State Total
2007
Current $ 3,986 $ 1,494 3 5,480
Deferred {163) (77) (240)
Provision for income taxes $ 3,823 3 1,417 3 5,240
2006
Current 3 5,076 3 1,666 $ 6,742
Deferred (B78) (125) (1,003)
Provision for income taxes $ 4,198 $ 1,541 3 5,739
2005
Current b 4,706 3 1,508 $ 6,214
Deferred (481) 59 {422)
Provision for income taxes 3 4,225 $ 1,567 5 5.792

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following (dollars in theusands):
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Note 10 Income Taxes, Continued

December 31,

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan and lease losses $ 2,532 s 2,532
Future benefit of State tax deduction 485 580
Deterred compensation 1,371 1,172
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale
investment securities 409
Other 262 237
Total deferred tax assets 4,650 4,930
Deferred tax liabilities:
Core deposit intangible (547) {682)
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale
investment securities (65)
Investrnent market to market (81) {129)
Future {iability of State deferred tax assets (242) {215)
Deferred loan costs 423) (438)
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends (z11) (161)
Total deferred tax liabilities {1,579 (1,625)
Net deferred tax assets 3 3071 $ 3,305

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the United States and California jurisdicrions. There
are currently no pending federal, state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities. With few exceptions, the
Company is no longer subject to the examination by federal taxing authorities for the years ended before December
31,2004 and by state and local taxing authorities for years before December 31, 2003. The unrecognized tax benefits
and the interest and penalries accrued by the Company as of December 31, 2007 were not significant.

The provision for income taxes differs from amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax
rate of 35.0% to income before income taxes. The significant items comprising these differences consisted of the
following:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Federal income tax statutary rate 35.0% 35.0% 34.0%
State franchise tax, net of Federal tax effect 6.7% 6.8% 6.9%
Tax benefit of interest on obligations of states and political subdivisions (2.5)% (2.2)% {2.0)%
Tax-exempt income from life insurance policies {1.00% 0.5)% {0.4}%
Stock option compensation expense 0.4% 0.3%
Other {0.4)% {0.6)% 0.2%
Effective tax rate 382 % 38.8 % 38.7%
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Note 11 Commitments and Contingencies

Lfa.ff.’f

The Company leases branch facilities, administrative offices and various equipment under noncancelable operating
leases which expire on various dates through the year 2017, Certain of the leases have five year renewal options.
Two of the branch facilicies are leased from current or former members of the Company’s Board of Directors
(see Note 16).

Future minimum lease payments are as follows (@ollars in thousands).

Year Ending December 31,

2008 $ 1,016
2009 862
2010 683
2011 587
2012 562
Thereafter 1,365

S 505

Rental expense included in occupancy, furniture and equipment expense totaled $1,061,000, $1,035,000 and
$887,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business in order
to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial
instruments consist of commirments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized on the balance sheer.

The Company's exposute to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party for commitments o extend
credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company
uses the same credit policies in making commitments and standby lerrers of credit as it does for loans included on
the consolidated balance sheet.

The following financial instruments represent off-balance-sheet credir risk (dollars in theusands).

December 31,

2007 2006
Commitments to extend credit:

Revolving lines of credit secured by 1-4 family residences $ 8252 3 9,144

Commercial real estate, construction and land
development commitments secured by real estate 31,881 45,752
Other unused commitments, principally commercial loans 72,500 59,686
§ 112,633 {$ 114,582
Standby letters of credit § 7537 $ 5,701
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Note 11 Commitments and Contingencies, continued

Real estate commitments are generally secured by property with 2 loan-to-value ratio of 65% to 75%. In addition,
the majority of the Company’s commitments have variable interest rates.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any conditions
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn vpon, the
total commirment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each client’s creditworthiness is
evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collareral obtained, if deemed necessary upon extension of credit, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies, bur may include accounts receivable,
inventory, equipment and deeds of trust on residential real estate and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance or financial obligation
of a client to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved
in extending loans 1o clients. The fair value of the liability related to these standby letters of credit, which represents
the fees received for issuing the guarantees, was not significant at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Company
recognizes these fees as revenue over the term of the commitment or when the commitment is used.

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Company grants real estate mortgage, real estate construction, commercial, agricultural and consumer loans to
clients throughout Sacramento, Placer, Yolo, Amador, El Dorado, and Sonoma counties.

In managemenc’s judgment, a concentration exists in real estate-related loans which represented approximately 68%
and 71% of the Company's loan portfolio at Diecember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Although management
believes such concentrations to have no mere than the normal risk of collecribility, a substantial decline in the
economy in general, or a decline in real estate values in the Company’s primary market areas in particular, could
have an adverse impact on collectibilicy of these loans. However, personal and business income represent the primary
source of repayment for a majority of these loans.

Correspondent Banking Agreements
The Company mainzains funds on deposit with other federally insured financial institutions under correspondent
banking agreements. Uninsured deposits totaled $2,902,000 at December 31, 2007,

Contingencies

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to such actions will not materially affect the
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.
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Note 12 Shareholders’ Equity

Earnings Per Share

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations is as

follows (dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data):

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2007
Basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive stock options

Diluted earnings per share

December 31, 2006
Basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive stock options

Diluted earnings per share

December 31, 2005
Basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive stock options

Diluted earnings per share

Stock Option Plans

Weighted
average
number of Per-share
Net income outstanding amount
$ 8,478 5.765 $ 1.47
50
3 8,478 5,825 $ 1.46
% 9,062 6,091 $ 1.49
112
$ 9,062 5,203 $ 1.46
$ 9,184 6,196 $ 1.48
127
$ g,184

6,323 b 1.45

In 2000 and 1995, the Board of Directors adopted stock option plans under which options may be granted to
employees and directors under incentive and nonstatutory agreements. Both of these plans have been approved by
the Company's shareholders. At December 31, 2007, grants outstanding combined with shares available for future
grants toraled 613,044 shares under these plans. The plans require that the option price may not be less than the fair
market value of the stock ar the date the option is granted. The purchase price of exercised options is payable in full
in cash or shares of the Company’s common stock owned by the optionee at the rime the option is exercised. The
options expire on dates determined by the Board of Directors, but not later than ten years from the date of grant.
Options vest ratably over a five year period. Qutstanding options under the 1995 plan are exercisable until their
expiration; however, no new options will be granted under this plan. The Plans do not provide for the setdement of
awards in cash and new shares are issued upon the exercise of options.
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Note 12 Shareholders’ Equity, continued

A summary of the ourtstanding and vested stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Balance, January 1, 2007
Options granted
Options vested
Options exercised
Options expired or canceled

8alance, December 31, 2007

A summary of exercisable options as of December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Outstanding Nonvested
Weighted

average Weighted

Exercise Average

Price Fair Value

Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
342,318 13 15.54 179,902 $ 5.99
65,601 13 24.57 65,601 $ 6.07
{48,409) $ 5.44

(57,297} $ 7.74

(18,312} 13 22.86 {(18,312) % 5.97
$ 18.33 __ 178782 $ 6.17

332,310
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Number of vested stock options 153,528
Weighted average exercise price per share $ 13.76
Aggregate intrinsic value £ 694,000
Weighted average remaining contractual term in years 469
A summary of options outstanding at December 31, 2007 follows:
Number of Weighted Number of
Options Average Options

Qutstanding Remaining Excercisable

December 31, Contractual December 31,
Range of Exercise Prices 2007 Life 2007
§ 429 10,175 2.05 years 10,175
§ 455 6,202 75 years 6,202
§ 728 5712 1.85 years 5712
$ 745 4,632 1.05 years 4,632
§ 802 25,699 75 years 25,699
$ 1225 37,525 5.25 years 30113
§ 1329 883 5.45 years 706
$ 17.62 53,151 6.35 years 31,521
$ 19.01 26,248 7.05 years 9,545
$ 19.15 35,954 7.65 years 15,360
$ 25.22 66,236 8.15 years 13,865
$ 2457 59,853 9.25 years

332,310 153,528

|
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Note 12 Shareholders’ Equity, continued

Common Stock Repurchase Program

On September 20, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized a stock repurchase program which calls
for the repurchase of up to five percent (5%) annually of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock. The
repurchases are to be made from time to time in the open marker as conditions allow. The Board of Directors has
reserved the right to suspend, terminate, modify or cancel this repurchase program ar any time for any reason. On
Ocrober 17, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company expanded the stock repurchase program for calendar year
2007 by an additional $2,000,000.

Stock Dividend

The Board of Directors declared 5% stock dividends on November 21, 2007, November 15, 2006 and November 16,
2005. All per share and stock option data included in the consolidated financial statements have been retroactively
restated to reflect the stock dividends.

Note 13 Regulatory Matters

Dividends

Upon declaration by the Board of Directors of the Company, all shareholders of record will be entitled to receive
dividends. The California Financial Code restricts the total dividend payment of any stare banking association in any
calendar year to the lesser of (1) the banks retained earnings or (2) the bank’s net income for its last three fiscal years,
less distributions made to shareholders during the same three-year period. In addition, subject to prior regulatory
approval, any state banking association may request an exception to this restriction. In 2006, ARB requested, and
received approval for, a one-time payment of $2,500,000. Ar December 31, 2007, ARB had $1,941,000 in retained
earnings available for dividend payments to the Company.

The Company has paid quarterly cash dividends on its common stock since the first quarter of 2004; prior ro that,
the Company paid cash dividends twice a year since 1992. It is currently the intention of the Board of Directors of
the Company to continue payment of cash dividends on a quarterly basis. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company
declared cash dividends in the amount of $.58, $.35 and $.49, respectively, per common share. The amounts have
been adjusted to reflect 5% stock dividends declared in 2007 and in 2006. There is no assurance, however, that any
dividends will be paid in the future since they are subject to regulatory restrictions, and dependent upon earnings,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Regulatory Capital

The Company and ARB are subject to certain regulatory capital requirements administered by the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System and the FIDIC. Failure to meet these minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the banking subsidiaries must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheer items as calculared under
regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s and ARB’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation ro ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its banking
subsidiary to maintain minimum amounts and racios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assews and of
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Note 13 Regulatory Matters, continued

Tier 1 capital to average assets. Each of these components is defined in the reguladons. Management believes
that the Company and its banking subsidiary met all their capital adequacy requirements as of December 31, 2607
and 2006.

In additien, the most recent notifications from the FDIC categorized ARB as well capiralized under the regularory
framework for prompr corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, ARB must maineain mintmum total
risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth below. There are no conditions or events since those
notifications that management believes have changed the categories.

(dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2007 2006

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Leverage Ratio
American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries $ 42,358 7.7% $ 4514 7.8%
Minimum regulatory requirement 3 21,95 4.0% $ 23,097 4.0%
American River Bank $ 42616 7.8% $ 45842 8.0%
Minimum requirement for “Well-Capitalized” institution $ 27375 5.0% $ 28825 5.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement $ 21,900 4.0% $ 23,060 4.0%
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratio
American River 8ankshares and Subsidiaries $ 42,358 9.5% § 45114 10.3%
Minimum regufatory requirement $ 17,926 4.0% $ 17,450 4.0%
American River Bank 3 42,616 9.6% § 45,842 10.5%
Minimum requirement for “Well-Capitalized” institution $ 26,775 6.0% $ 26,087 6.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement $ 17,850 4.0% 317,39 4.0%
Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio
American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries 3 47,963 10.7% $ 50,672 11.6%
Minimurm regulatory requirement $ 35874 8.0% $ 34932 8.0%
Amaeanican River Bank § 48,198 10.8% $ 51,282 11.8%
Minimum requirerent for “wWell-Capitalized” institution § 44656 10.0% § 43522 10.0%
Minimum regulatory requirement $ 35725 8.0% $ 34818 8.0%
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Note 14 Other Noninterest Income and Expense

Other noninterest income consisted of the following (dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Merchant fee income $ 544 $ 549 $ 509
Accounts receivable servicing fees (Note 7) 244 372 356
Income from residential lending division 401 256 283
Bank owned life insurance 404 192 178
Other 252 250 283
1 1,845 3 1,659 $ 1,609

Other noninterest expense consisted of the following (doflars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Professional fees 3 832 19 778 $ 732
Telephone and postage 420 411 439
Directors’ expense 378 3N 429
Qutsourced item processing 374 495 489
Advertising and prometion 338 357 331
Stationery and supplies 322 335 303
Amortization of intangible assets 308 330 352
Donations 62 88 82
Other operating expenses 1,314 1,271 1,231
3 4,348 $ 4,376 13 4,388

Note 15 Employee Benefit Plans

American River Bankshares 401(k} Plan

The American River Bankshares 401{k) Plan commenced January 1, 1993 and is available to all employees. Under
the plan, the Company will macch 100% of each participants’ contribution up to 3% of annual compensation plus
50% of the next 2% of annual compensation. Employer Safe Harbor matching conuributions (made after January
1, 2004) are 100% vested upon entering the plan. The Company’s contributions made prior to January 1, 2004 vest
ar a rate of 20% per year over a five year period. The Company’s contributions totaled $227,000, $217,000 and
$220,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company contracts with an administrator for an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows employees to
purchase the Company’s stock at fair market value as of the date of purchase. The Company bears all costs of
administering the Plan, including broker’s fees, commissions, postage and other costs actually incurred.
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Note 15 Employee Benefit Plans, continued

American River Bankshares Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has established a Deferred Compensation Plan for certain members of the management team and a
Deferred Fee Agreement for Non-Employee Directors for the purpose of providing the opportunity for participants
to defer compensation. Participants of the management team, who are selected by a committee designated by the
Board of Directors, may elect to defer annually a minimum of $5,000 or a maximum of eighty percent of their base
salary and all of their cash bonus. Directors may also elect ro defer up to one hundred percent of their monthly fees.
The Company bears all administration costs and accrues interest on the participants deferred balances ac a rate based
on U.S. Government Treasury rates, 8.7% at December 31, 2007. Deferred compensation, including interest earned,
totaled $1,769,000, $1,488,000 and $1,147,000 at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The expense
recognized under this plan rotaled $142,000, $113,000 and $78,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Salary Continnation Plan

The Company has agreements to provide certain current executives, or their designared beneficiaries, with annual
benefits for up to 15 years after retirement or death. These beneftts are substantially equivalent to those available
under life insurance policies purchased by the Company on the lives of the executives. The Company accrues for
these future benefits from the effective date of the agreements until the executives’ expected final payment dates
in a systemaric and rational manner. As of December 31, 2007 and 20006, the Company had accrued $521,000
and $352,000, respectively, for potential benefits payable. This payable approximares the then present value of the
benefits expected to be provided at retirement. The expense recognized under this plan totaled $169,000, $126,000
and $115,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Under these plans, the Company invested in single premium life insurance policies with cash surrender values roraling
$10,101,000 and $9,697,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. On the consolidared balance sheet, the
cash surrender value of life insurance policies is included in accrued interest receivable and other assets. Tax-exempt
income on these policies, net of expense, totaled approximately $404,000, $192,000 and $178,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 16 Related Party Transactions

During the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions with related parties, including Directors
and affiliates. These transactions include borrowings from the Company with substantially the same terms, including
rates and collateral, as loans to unrelated parties. The following is a summary of the aggregate activity involving
related party borrowers during 2007 {dollars in thousands):

Balance, January 1, 2007 $ 2,239
Disbursements 1,354
Amounts repaid (168)

Balance, December 31, 2007 4 3,425

Undisbursed commitments to related parties,December 31, 2007 3 31
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Note 16 Related Party Transactions, continued

The Company also leases two of its branch facilities from current or former members of the Company’s Board
of Directors. Rental payments to the Directors totaled $106,000, $118,000 and $115,000 for the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 17: Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had other comprehensive income (loss) as follows :

(dollars in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Other comprehensive income;
Unrealized holding gains
Less reclassification adjustment for realized gains
included in netincome

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized helding gains
Less reclassification adjustment for realized gains
included in net income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Qther comprghensive loss:
Unrealized holding losses
Less reclassification adjustment for realized gains
included in net income

Note 18 Disclosures About Fair Value Of Financial Instruments

Tax
Before {Expense) After
Tax Benefit Tax
1,153 b {472} 681
25 (10} 15
1,128 3 {462} 666
323 $ {130} 193
1 1
322 $ (130} 192
2,111} b B27 (1,284}
48 (20 28
{2,159) $ 847 {1312

Estimated fair values are disclosed for financial instraments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. These
estimates are made at a specific poinr in time based on relevant market data and information about the financial
instruments. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering the Company’s
entire holdings of a particular financial instrument for sale at one time, nor do they attempt to estimate the value of
anticipated future business refated to the instruments. In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization of
unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in any

of these estimates.

Because no marker exists for a significant portion of the Company's financial instruments, fair value estimates are
based on judgments regarding current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments and
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Note 18 Disclosures About Fair Value Of Financial Instruments, continued

other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgmenc
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the fair values
presented.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company to estimate the fair value of its financial
instruments at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Cash and cash equivalents:
For cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amount is estimated ro be fair value.

Interest-bearing deposits in banks:
The fair values of interest-bearing deposits in banks are estimared by discounting their future cash flows using rates at
each reporting date for instruments with similar remaining maturiries offered by comparable financial institutions.

Investnent securities:
Fot investment securities, fair values are based on quored market prices, where available. If quoted marker prices
are nort available, fair values are estimared using quoted marker prices for similar securities and indications of value

provided by brokers.

Loans and leases:

For variable-rate loans and leases that reprice frequencly with no significant change in credic risk, fair values are based
on carrying values. The fair values for other loans and leases are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using
interest rates being offered at each reporting date for loans and leases with similar terms to borrowers of comparable
creditworthiness. The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.

FHLB stock:
The carrying amount of FHLB steck approximates its fair value, This investment is carried at cost and is redeemable
at par with cerrain restrictions.

Accounts receivable servicing receivables:
The carrying amount of accounts receivable servicing receivables approximates their fair value because of the relatively
short period of time between the origination of the receivables and cheir expected collection.

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies:
The fair value of life insurance policies are based on cash surrender values at each reporting date as provided by
insurers.

Deposits:

The fair values for non-maturing deposits are, by definition, equal to the amounc payable on demand at the reporting
date represented by their carrying amount. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a
discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates offered at each reporting date for certificates with similar remaining
maturities. The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates its fair value,

Shors-term and long-term borrowings:

The fair value of short-term borrowings is estimated to be the carrying amount. The fair value of long-term
borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates currendy available for similar debt
instruments.
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Note 18 Disclosures About Fair Value Of Financial Instruments, continued

Commitments to extend credit:
The fair value of commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, net of erigination
fees. These fees were not material at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

(dollars in thousands):
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,945 $ 17,945 $ 257352 $ 25352
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 4,951 4,963 4,95 4,855
Investmeni securities 113,724 113,825 148,240 147,929
Loans and leases, net 394,975 393,047 382,993 382,630
FHLB stock 2,800 2,800 3,071 3,07
Accounts receivable servicing receivables 1,666 1,666 2,581 2,581
Accrued interest receivable 2,691 2,691 3.131 3,131
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies 10,101 10,101 9,697 9,697
Financial liabilities:
Depasits $ 455,645 $ 456,250 $ 493,875 $ 494,512
Short-term borrowings 51,603 51,603 37.270 37,270
Long-term borrewings 5,000 4942
Accrued interest payable 747 747 868 868

American River Bankshares and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 19: Parent Only Condensed Finanacial Statements

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands)

2007 2006
Assets
Cash and due from banks 3 611 3 308
Investment in subsidiaries 60,231 63,100
Dividends receivable from subsidiaries 840 300
Other assets 1,873 1,434
$ 63,555 $ 65,142
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Dividends payable to shareholders 3 839 $ 848
Other liabilities 2,743 1,923
Total liabilities 3,582 2,771
Shareholders” equity:
Commaon stock 45,658 48,246
Retained earnings 14,204 14,690
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes 101 (565)
Total shareholders” equity 59,973 62,371
$ 63,555 $ 65,142
Condensed Statement of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 {dollars in thousands)
2007 2006 2005
Income:
Dividends declared by subsidiaries—eliminated in consolidation $ 12,575 $ 9,570 H 6,522
Management fee from subsidiaries—eliminated in consolidation 3,332 3,174 2,760
Other income 39 20 19
Total income 15,946 12,764 9,301
Expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 2,766 2,647 2,338
Professional fees 384 386 225
Directors' expense 288 237 339
Other expenses £96 726 611
Total expenses 4,134 3,996 3,513
lncome befare equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 11,812 B,768 5,788
Equity in undistributed (distributed) income of subsidiaries {3,637} (28) 3,107
Income before income taxes 8,175 8,740 8,895
Income tax benefit 303 322 289
Met income $ 8,478 3 9,062 $ 9,184
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Note 19: Parent Only Condensed Financial Statements, Continued

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands)

2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities;
et income $ 8478 $ 5082 $ 9184
Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o net cash provided
by operating activities:

Undistributed (distributed) earnings of subsidiaries 3,637 28 {3.107)
(Increase) decrease in dividends receivable from subsidiaries (540) 542 9,143
Stock option compensaticn expense 301 221
{Increase} decrease in other assets {500} {206} 74
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 820 32 (692)
Net cash provided by operating activities 12,196 9.679 14,602
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash paid to Bank of Amador shareholders (12,730)
Purchase of equipment {41) (58) (353)
Net cash used in investing activities 41) (58) (13,083)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid (3.328) {3.325) (2,753
Exercise of stock options, including tax benefit 679 441 945
Cash paid to repurchase common stock {9,194) (6,724) (2,019
Cash paid for fractional shares {9) 21) (32)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,852) (3,629) (3.857)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 303 {8) (2,338)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 308 316 2,654
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ) 611 b 308 { 316
Non-cash financing activities:
Dividends declared and unpaid 3 839 3 848 3 841
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 108, net of taxes 3 214
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